Public Document Pack

Development Control B
Committee
Agenda
Date: Wednesday, 12 February 2020
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber, City Hall, College Green,
BRISTOL, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Richard Eddy (Vice-Chair), Carla Denyer, Lesley Alexander, Tom Brook (Chair),
Harriet Bradley, Mike Davies, Fi Hance, Olly Mead, Jo Sergeant, Nicola Bowden-Jones, Celia Phipps,
Sultan Khan and Martin Fodor

Issued by: Allison Taylor, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 22237
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Tuesday, 4 February 2020

Development Control B Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information

2.00 pm
(Pages 4 - 5)

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any interests relevant to the consideration of items on the agenda.
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which are not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4.

Minutes of the previous meeting

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

5.

Appeals

To note appeals lodged, imminent public inquiries and appeals awaiting decision.

6.

(Pages 11 - 18)

Enforcement

To note enforcement notices.

7.

(Pages 6 - 10)

Public forum
Any member of the public or councillor may participate in public forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet
at the back of this agenda. Please note that the following deadlines will apply
in relation to this meeting:
Questions:
Written questions must be received three clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received
at the latest by 5pm on 6 February 2020.
Petitions and statements:
Petitions and statements must be received by noon on the working day prior

(Page 19)

Development Control B Committee – Agenda

to the meeting. For this meeting, this means that your submission must be
received at the latest by 12.00 noon on 11 February 2020.
The statement should be addressed to the Service Director, Legal Services, c/o
The Democratic Services Team, City Hall, 3rd Floor Deanery Wing, College
Green,
P O Box 3176, Bristol, BS3 9FS or email - democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk

8.

Planning and Development

To consider the following applications for Development Control Committee B -

(Page 20)

a)

19/04821/A - Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath
Road Totterdown

(Pages 21 - 35)

b)

19/04744/F & 19/04745/LA - Blackboy Inn 171
Whiteladies Road

(Pages 36 - 82)

c)

19/05576/H - 116 Chessel Street

(Pages 83 - 99)

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR.
Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting
room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or
Democratic Services Section, City Hall, College Green, Bristol BS1 5UY. The following requirements
apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.

Statements will not be accepted under any circumstances after 12.00 noon deadline unless there is
clear evidence that it has been sent to Bristol City Council in advance of it but was not picked up by the
Democratic Services Section at the time it was originally sent. Anyone submitting multiple statements
for an application should note that they will only be allowed to speak once at the meeting.
Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a
public record (available from Democratic Services).
We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.
Process during the meeting:







The Chair of the meeting will ask each public forum speaker to come forward in the order their
statement has been received and the beginning of the discussion for each Planning Application
that their statements relates to.
You should speak into a fixed microphone for your allocated time.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
When you are invited to speak, please make sure that your presentation focuses on the key issues
that you would like Members to consider. This will have the greatest impact.
Development Control Committees are not interactive. You may remain and listen to the debate
but you will not be able to play any further part in the meeting including the Committee debate.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Development Control B Committee
18 December 2019 at 1.00 pm

Members Present:Councillors: Lesley Alexander, Nicola Bowden-Jones, Harriet Bradley, Tom Brook (Chair), Mike Davies,
Carla Denyer, Fi Hance, Sultan Khan, Olly Mead, Jo Sergeant and Steve Smith
Officers in Attendance:Gary Collins – Head of Development Management and Claudette Campbell - Democratic Services Officer

1. Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed those present and explained the process on hearing of each application.
2. Apologies for Absence
These were received from Councillor Eddy (Substitute Cllr S Smith)
3. Declarations of Interest
There were none.
4. Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes were agreed as correct record of the meeting.
Resolved: that the Minutes be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair
5. Appeals
The Head of Development Management requested that Committee note the update report.

Page 6

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

6. Enforcement
Committee were requested to note that notices were pending with a further update to be given at the
next meeting.
7. Public forum
Members of the Committee received Public Forum Statements in advance of the meeting.
The statements were heard before the application they related to and were taken fully into consideration
by the Committee prior to reaching a decision.
8. Planning and Development
9. 19/04331/F Old Building Bristol Royal Infirmary Marlborough Street City Centre Bristol
BS2 8HW
The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the
report for this item highlighting the following:
Cllr Khan arrived after the start of public forum so was unable to participate in the discussion and decision
making for this application.
The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the
report for this item highlighting the following:
a. Committee were provided with an overview of the extensive history of this development and
explained the fundamental changes in terms of the current scheme. The submitted schemed
addressed the majority of issues that had arisen about the redevelopment of the site over recent
years.
b. The application sets out: The intended retention and refurbishment of the former BRI building
Fripps Chapel for residential and community use / A3, D1 and D2 uses; the erection of new
buildings to provide 416 student bedspaces; the enhancement to the public realm with
landscaping; public access to a newly created square; the widening of the pavement around the
site; connection to the District Heating Network and use of the same; the offer of 12 units to made
available for affordable rent, albeit in this instance not a policy requirement.
c. The report detailed the remaining outstanding concerns raised by interested parties and the
conditions outlined to meet a number of these concerns and agreements arrived at between
Officers and the Developer. Officers were confident that they had now arrived at a place that the
application could be approved together with the necessary conditions and with the Committees’
delegated authority move forward to resolve any outstanding issues as matters progressed.

Page 7

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

d. There was no requirement for the provision of affordable housing as the development benefits
from ‘vacant building credit’ but the applicant had voluntarily offered 12 units to be made
available at a discounted rent likely to be used by essential workers – health workers or
educational workers employed by the hospital or university. Committee were advised that this
element could only be given neutral weight in coming to a resolution.
e. Officers recommend approval subject to a s. 106 legal agreement and a number of conditions.
Questions for Clarification
f. Further clarification was sought on the offer of affordable housing; who was to manage those
units? What measure could be put in place to prevent the future sale of units on the open market?
Also if the space standards been met for each of the units? Officers were able to comment as
follows:
 The offer of 12 units was discretionary; not a policy requirement ; the details of the
management of which will be finalised and secured through the s. 106 agreement, Unite
would remain the Landlord and manage all units; Bristol University are the preferred client
whose students would likely occupy the cluster units; the studio units likely to be offered
to other establishments recognising that they can be more suitable to mature students.
 As ownership remains with Unite they are in a position to sell the flats on the open market
should they choose to do so.
g. Heat network connection – the report detailed the use of the network in the development but a
question was asked as to why some units would not use the energy source for all its needs;
 Officers confirmed that the development will connect to the district heating network as
outlined in the report; with the network supplying hot water and heat to the residential
units and hot water only to the student accommodation. Heating for the student
accommodation is to be by electric panel heaters. The report details the objection to this
latter element.
h. A question was asked on how access to the Bus Station that backs onto Whitson Street would be
treated and management during and after construction particularly concerns were raised about
the disabled drop off area.
 Members were assured that the construction management plan would condition the need
for continued access to the Bus station by all including those with a disability and would
deal with access to Whitson Street in consultation with Highways.
 The intention is to ensure that on completion of the development the proposed wider
pavements would not be used as an unofficial drop off area; the public realm design layout
will include strategically placed street furniture.
 The taxi rank is to be relocated in part to adjoining Earl Street in the vicinity of the
Magistrates Court. This has been agreed in consultation with the Taxi drivers group.
i. An explanation was sought on the steps taken in the design to mitigate the devastation that a fire
causes in the building; clarification on the kind of materials being used in the construction and
whether there was any potential that such materials may accelerate such a fire?.
 Members were assured that the issue of building materials used in the construction of
buildings are well aired and therefore well controlled by Building Regulations. In addition
its known that the insurance industry have strict restrictions in place that encourages &
supports good practice from Developers when selecting construction materials.

Page 8

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

j. Discussion
k. Members of the Committee commended the developers for work done with the planners that has
now resulted in a proposal that is fitting and in keeping with the area.
l. A Member further acknowledged the work done to retain a building that had significant value to
the citizens of Bristol.
m. Members noted that the development satisfied the aspiration of committee to locate
accommodation for students within a reasonable walking distance to their centre of learning.
n. The developers and highways team were requested to do what they could to ensure that traffic
and access on Whitson Street was properly managed throughout the construction process.
o. Cllr Davies proposed and seconded by Cllr Mead, that the planning application be agreed as set
out in Officer report, with conditions detailed therein together with that set out in the
Amendment Sheet, when put to the vote;
p. Resolved (10 members available to vote: 10 for; 0 against) that the application be granted as per
Officer recommendation detailed in the Report & Amendment sheet.
10.19/01690/F Kingsdown House & 1-3 Units Unity Street St Philips Bristol BS2 0HN
The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the
report for this item highlighting the following:
a. Committee were provided with an overview of the report that detailed the planning application;
for the demolition of Kingsdown House & 1-3 Unity Street located in the Old Market area of
Bristol; erection of 3 buildings ranging in height comprising of 102 Co-living studios; 189 Student
bedrooms; co-working/employment and other associated items.
b. Details were given on the numbers of student accommodation buildings in the Old Market area
and the projected movement of students.
c. Officer recommendation was to approve the application and grant delegated authority to Officers
to finalise the necessary conditions and the Section 106 legal agreement. .
d. Questions
e. The absence of food shops and/or local convenience stores was noted; Officers advised that this
was subject to market conditions.
f. Further explanation was sought & provided on the accessibility of the accommodation for
students with disabilities.
g. Discussion
h. Members commented the scheme agreeing it was of a high quality; the design reflected the local
area; the inclusive of mix use was viewed positively; were hopeful that the co-living arrangements
would prove successful and looked to the management company to properly manage the
accommodation.
i. Commented that the area needed ‘an uplift’ that the application provided that in its design. .
j. A Member looked to the developer to encourage the occupation of the units by students in the
upper years not just first years.
k. Cllr Mead moved that Committee support officer recommendation to approve, seconded by Cllr
Davies when put to the vote;

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

l.

Resolved: (11 for unanimous) that the application be granted subject to conditions set out in the
report.

11.19/05160/H 26 Cranham Road Bristol BS10 5EF
The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the
report for this item highlighting the following:
a. Committee received a presentation on the proposal to erect a single storey side and rear
extension together with the erection of a small porch to the front elevation at 26 Cranham Road.
Members were provided with a full overview of the proposed alteration to the building.
b. Members were reminded that this matter had come to Committee as required by the Planning
Officer code of conduct that prevented Officers presiding over a colleagues planning application.
c. Questions
d. There were none.
e. Debate
f. Members noted that it was a small scale, householder development and the reason why it had
been brought to Committee; requesting that the process is reviewed by committee leads to avoid
unnecessary delay to an Officer application; to ensure best use of Officer time & Committee time.
The Head of Development Management advised that the Constitution and the Planning Code of
Conduct was in the process of being reviewed but until such time that an alternative process was
adopted such matters would continue to be presented to Committee.
g. Cllr Mead moved, Cllr Denyer seconded, the approval of the application as set out in the Officer
report when put to the vote;
h. Resolved (11 for unanimous) that the application be approved as set out in the report.

12.Date of Next Meeting
12 February 2020 @ 6pm

Meeting ended at 2.53 pm
CHAIR __________________

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B
12th February 2020
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE
LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS
Householder appeal
Item

Ward

Text0:
1
Lockleaze

Text0:
2
Cotham

Address, description and appeal type
657 Muller Road Bristol BS5 6XS
Proposed dropped kerb, removal of front wall and creation of
parking area.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
16 Clare Road Cotham Bristol BS6 5TB
Demolition of existing rear extension and replacement with
new rear and side extension, replacement of existing roof
materials with natural slate and internal alterations to existing
dwelling including addition of first floor bathroom window.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
3
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

11 Reedley Road Bristol BS9 3SR
Double storey and single storey rear extension and single
storey front and side extensions. Resubmission.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
4
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

66 Portview Road Bristol BS11 9JU
Erection of two storey and single storey side extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
5
Bishopsworth

6 Gardner Avenue Bristol BS13 8BG
Two storey side and rear extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

03 February 2020

Page 11

Date lodged

02/09/2019

10/10/2019

04/11/2019

04/11/2019

21/11/2019

Page 1 of 8

Text0:
6
Stockwood

Text0:
7
Henbury & Brentry

690 Wells Road Hengrove Bristol BS14 9HX
Proposed dropped kerb and creation of parking, with access
onto Wells Road.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
6 Greenlands Way Bristol BS10 7PR
Proposed two storey side and single storey rear extension
(demolition existing garage and rear conservatory).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
8
Bishopston &
Ashley Down

85 Thornleigh Road Bristol BS7 8PQ
Retrospective application for a rear single storey extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
9
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

14 Cransley Crescent Bristol BS9 4PG
First floor side extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

26/11/2019

10/12/2019

20/01/2020

03/02/2020

Informal hearing
Item

Ward

Text0:
10
Central

Address, description and appeal type
Trust Headquarters Marlborough Street City Centre Bristol
BS2 8CC
Outline planning application to consider Access and Scale
(with Appearance, Landscaping and Layout reserved) for the
demolition of all existing structures and the erection of a
hospital transport hub, comprising a 400-space Cycle Centre,
820-space hospital-only car park, hospital bus drop-off point
and associated works (Major).
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Date of hearing

21/01/2020

Written representation
Item

Ward

Text0:
11
St George West

03 February 2020

Address, description and appeal type

Date lodged

Land To The Rear 324 Church Road, And Of Flats 1-3, 2
Beaconsfield Road St George Bristol BS5 8AJ
Proposed residential unit.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

27/08/2019

Page 12

Page 2 of 8

Text0:
12
Ashley

Mary Seacole Court 110 Mina Road Bristol BS2 9TP
Extension to existing block of flats: to erect two new storeys
on top of existing two storeys split in to two levels (additional
9 units, 7 in a third storey & 2 in a fourth storey, set back from
the edge of the building (Resubmission of application
18/05704/F).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
13
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

22 Gilda Parade Bristol BS14 9HY
Outline application for proposed block of two flats - Approval
sought for Layout.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
14
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

22 Devonshire Road Bristol BS6 7NJ
Conversion of an existing HMO back to a single dwelling
house plus a gate and shed to the garden.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
15
Clifton

7A Richmond Hill Avenue Bristol BS8 1BG
Proposed demolition of existing side extension and
replacement with a one and a half storey side extension, and
various external alterations to the building new/altered
openings.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
16
Clifton

Text0:
17
Filwood

Text0:
18
Lawrence Hill

03 February 2020

7A Richmond Hill Avenue Bristol BS8 1BG
Proposed demolition of existing side extension and
replacement with a one and a half storey side extension, and
various external alterations to the building new/altered
openings.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
3 St Whytes Road Bristol BS4 1RX
New 2 bedroom dwelling with off street parking, bin store and
cycle storage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land Rear Of Temple Trading Estate Cole Road Bristol
Erection of a structure to support 2no. 12m wide x 3m high
LED digital displays.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 13

11/10/2019

14/10/2019

14/10/2019

23/10/2019

23/10/2019

24/10/2019

30/10/2019

Page 3 of 8

Text0:
19
Hillfields

Text0:
20
Clifton Down

Text0:
21
Windmill Hill

Text0:
22
St George West

Text0:
23
Bedminster

Text0:
24
St George Central

Text0:
25
Stoke Bishop

03 February 2020

30 Hillfields Avenue Bristol BS16 4JR
Full Planning Permission (Re-submission) for the
construction of a single two-bedroom house with vehicular
parking, refuse store and cycle racks on land to the side of 30
Hillfields Avenue (Self Build)
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
34 Oakfield Grove Bristol BS8 2BL
Proposed side arched extension, providing additional living
space to the existing first/second floor maisonette.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
17 Shepton Walk Bristol BS3 5NU
Proposed conversion of double garage to a one bed dwelling
house.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land To The Rear Of 1A Clouds Hill Avenue Bristol BS5 7JD
Erection of a single dwelling on the land to the rear of 1A
Cloud Hill Avenue, following the removal of the existing
garage and outbuilding. Reconfiguration of the external space
shared by numbers 1 - 5 Clouds Hill Road.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Advertising Next To 267 West Street Bedminster Bristol BS3
3PZ
Appeal against discontinuance notice for a 48 sheet internally
illuminated advertising display.

125 Two Mile Hill Road Bristol BS15 1BH
To erect a two bedroom dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
16 Hadrian Close Bristol BS9 1DZ
Demolish the existing building (Use Class C3) and build a
two-storey detached residential dwelling (Use Class C3) with
secure bicycle store. (Self Build).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 14

01/11/2019

05/11/2019

05/11/2019

14/11/2019

14/11/2019

20/11/2019

20/11/2019

Page 4 of 8

Text0:
26
Lawrence Hill

Text0:
27
Clifton

Text0:
28
Southmead

7 Kensington Park Bristol BS5 0NU
Enforcement notice appeal for installation of a front dormer
roof extension without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Land Rear To 28 Ambrose Road Rosemont Terrace Bristol
BS8 4RJ
The erection of a terrace of 3no. houses with associated
landscape works (re-submission of application ref.
18/01993/F).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Site At 6 Embleton Road & 2 Staveley Crescent Bristol BS10
6DS
Erection of 1 no 2 bed Dwelling and 1 no 3 Bed Dwelling
adjacent to existing dwellings.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
29
Hartcliffe &
Withywood

49 Pigott Avenue Bristol BS13 9HR
Erection of a 3 bedroom dwelling on land adjacent to 49
Pigott Avenue.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
30
Hillfields

262 Ridgeway Road Bristol BS16 3LE
Erection of a new 2 bedroom (3 bed spaces) end of terrace
house over 2 storeys, with associated external works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
31
St George Central

Text0:
32
Eastville

03 February 2020

18 Glen Park St George Bristol BS5 7ND
Demolition of an existing garage at the rear of the garden and
construction of a new self-contained dwelling unit with access
from Brockhurst Gardens.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Advertising Next To 784 Muller Road Bristol BS5 6XA
Removal of existing 48 sheet advert and replacement with an
upgraded digital poster.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 15

26/11/2019

04/12/2019

04/12/2019

10/12/2019

12/12/2019

16/12/2019

02/01/2020

Page 5 of 8

Text0:
33
Redland

19 Dundonald Road Bristol BS6 7LN
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of terrace/balcony
without planning permission.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Text0:
34
Hartcliffe &
Withywood

15 Culverwell Road Bristol BS13 9EY
Erection of a 2-bedroom dwelling to side 15 Culverwell Road,
associated parking and amenity area.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
35
Lawrence Hill

199 Stapleton Road Easton Bristol BS5 0PA
Removal of existing 12mx3m internally illuminated display
and 12mx3m display followed by the installing an internally
illuminated digital advertisement measuring approximately
6mx3m.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
36
Hotwells &
Harbourside

Jacobs Court St Georges Road Bristol BS1 5US
Window and door replacement works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
37
Lawrence Hill

Cabot Circus Car Park Newfoundland Circus Bristol BS2 9AB
Retention of existing internally illuminated 48-sheet display.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
38
Lawrence Hill

Cabot Circus Car Park Newfoundland Circus Bristol BS2 9AB
Replacement of existing internally illuminated 'backlight'
landscape advertisement (6m by 3m) with an internally
illuminated landscape D-Poster display (8m by 4m).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

06/01/2020

13/01/2020

21/01/2020

24/01/2020

03/02/2020

03/02/2020

List of appeal decisions
Item

Ward

Text0:
39
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

03 February 2020

Address, description and appeal type
1 Whytes Close Bristol BS9 3HU
Erection of 1 detached dwelling house.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 16

Decision and
date decided
Appeal dismissed
09/12/2019
Costs not awarded

Page 6 of 8

Text0:
40
Eastville

435 Fishponds Road Fishponds Bristol BS16 3AP
Roof extension to existing garage to create gym and games
room for household use.
Appeal against non-determination

Appeal allowed
20/12/2019
Costs not awarded

Text0:
41
Southmead

533 Southmead Road Bristol BS10 5NG
Erection of two storey building to provide a 1 bedroom
dwelling unit.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
16/12/2019

Text0:
42
Eastville

140 Fishponds Road Eastville Bristol BS5 6PT
Enforcement appeal for development to create and turn flat
roofed rear extension to outdoor amenity area.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal dismissed
09/12/2019

Text0:
43
Stoke Bishop

22 Julian Road Bristol BS9 1LB
Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for a
Proposed use or development. Single storey rear extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
23/01/2020

Text0:
44
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

13 Hallen Drive Bristol BS9 2NU
Application for a two storey side extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
13/12/2019

Text0:
45
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

84 Falcondale Road Bristol BS9 3JZ
Demolition of side garage and proposed two storey side and
single storey rear extension including X5 front and rear roof
lights.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
17/12/2019

Text0:
46
Southville

28 Stackpool Road Bristol BS3 1NQ
Loft conversion.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
15/01/2020

Text0:
47
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

6 Greenacre Road Bristol BS14 0HL
Single storey front extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
10/01/2020

03 February 2020

Page 17

Page 7 of 8

Text0:
48
Easton

191 Whitehall Road Bristol BS5 9BT
Upgrade of existing 48 sheet advert to support digital poster.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
10/01/2020

Text0:
49
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

Advertising Right Near Smoke Lane Ironchurch Road Bristol
BS11 9BP
Replacement of an existing illuminated 96-sheet
advertisement display with an illuminated 48-sheet digital
advertisement display.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed

Text0:
50
Windmill Hill

03 February 2020

26 Holmesdale Road Bristol BS3 4QN
Single storey ground floor extension, to provide bathroom
and storage with first floor decking/terrace.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 18

28/01/2020

Appeal allowed
28/01/2020

Page 8 of 8

Agenda Item 6

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B
12th February 2020
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE
LIST OF ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED

Item Ward
1

Horfield

Address, description and enforcement type
Shahporan Masjid Mosque And Community Centre
382 Filton Avenue Bristol BS7 0BE
Erection of single storey rear extension to
Community and Cultural Centre (use Class D1)
without planning permission.

Date issued
15/01/2020

Breach of conditions notice
2

St George Central

37 Selby Road Bristol BS5 7SN
Installation of boundary treatment and ground works
and raised terrace without planning permission.
Enforcement notice

03 February 2020

Page 19

14/01/2020

Agenda Item 8
Development Control Committee B
12 February 2020
Report of the Director: Development of Place
Index
Planning Applications
Item

Ward

Officer
Recommendation

Application No/Address/Description

1

Windmill Hill

Split

19/04821/A - Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164
- 188 Bath Road Totterdown Bristol BS4 3EF
Removal of the 3no. existing hoarding
advertisement signs, and installation of 2no.
illuminated digital advertisements on support
legs.

2

Clifton Down

Grant

19/04744/F & 19/04745/LA - Blackboy Inn 171
Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY
Change of use from a Use Class A4 drinking
with establishment with associated residential
unit to flexible ground floor uses (A1, A2 and A3)
and a house in multiple occupation (sui generis)
with associated partial demolition, internal and
external alterations, refuse and cycle storage.

3

Bedminster

Grant

19/05576/H - 116 Chessel Street Bristol BS3
3DJ
Single storey rear infill extension. Rear roof
dormer extension.

index
v5.0514

Page 20
E:\Bristol\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\7\7\AI00019777\$550akp1n.docx

04/02/2020 09:46

Agenda Item 8a
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020

ITEM NO. 1

WARD:

Windmill Hill

SITE ADDRESS:

Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown Bristol BS4 3EF

APPLICATION NO:

19/04821/A

Advertisement

DETERMINATION
28 November 2019
DEADLINE:
Removal of the 3no. existing hoarding advertisement signs, and installation of 2no. illuminated
digital advertisements on support legs.

RECOMMENDATION:

APPLICANT:

Split Decision

JCDecauxUK
991 Great West Road
Brentford
TW8 9DN

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

03/02/20 14:14

Page 21

Committee report

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

SUMMARY
This application is being reported to Committee due to significant public interest and a split decision
recommendation.
The application site is located within South East Bristol, in the ward of Windmill Hill.
Part 1, Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England)
Regulations 2007 outlines that a local planning authority shall exercise its powers under these
Regulations in the interests of amenity and public safety, taking into account: the provisions of the
development plan (so far as they are material) and any other relevant factors. As such, the key issues
in the report concern the impact of the proposed development on amenity and public safety.
In relation to impact on amenity it is considered that given the site’s location on a transport corridor;
outside of a Conservation Area; lack of inter-visibility with and or distance from designated heritage
assets; and relationship with existing dwellings the proposed advertisements would have an
acceptable impact on the amenity of the area and the local context.
In relation to public safety, the application has been considered in detail by the Council’s Transport
Development Management (TDM) Team. Transport Officers object to the west facing advert on
grounds that the design (digital display showing static images in sequence) and siting has the
potential to distract east bound road users as 1) they approach the Bath Road/Totterdown Bridge
junction traffic lights where the advert would be directly behind and in the site line of the traffic lights
and 2) they negotiate the point after the junction where east bound buses merge with general traffic.
This distraction could result in reduced road user perception of changing traffic light signals or road
users failing to notice a bus merging in front of them, with potentially severe consequences.
There is no public safety objection to the east facing advert.
Therefore, a split decision is recommended; refusal of the west facing advert on public safety
grounds, and approval of the east facing advert.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The site is on Bath Road (A4). There are 3 ‘paper and paste’ hoarding adverts at the site. The last
previous known use of the site was car sales. The site is immediately adjacent to the west bound bus
lane and bus stop on the approach to the traffic light controlled three arm Bath Road/ Totterdown
Bridge Junction. Opposite the site is an east bound bus stop after which buses immediately merge
into general traffic. There are advisory cycle lanes in both directions. Also opposite is a piece of
vacant land where planning permission has recently been granted for a mixed use development
comprising 152 residential flats, and 418sqm office (B1(a)) floorspace (18/04620/F). Development has
not commenced. There is a sharp increase in topography at the rear of the site, atop which is a
wooded area.
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
17/06513/A - Removal of the three existing advertisements (2x 12mx3m displays, 1x 6mx3m display),
to be replaced with two 6mx3m internally illuminated digital advertisements – granted

Page 22

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

16/05424/A - Removal of the three existing advertisements (2x 12mx3m displays, 1x 6mx3m display),
to be replaced with two internally illuminated digital advertisements – refused (Appeal allowed)
16/05424/A was refused under delegated authority on amenity grounds; however a resulting appeal
was successful. 17/06513/A proposed smaller adverts and was approved under delegated authority
on 12.03.18. The two approved advertising displays are identical to those proposed by this application
in terms of siting, and display panel width and height. The only difference is the design of the support
legs meaning that the proposed structures are 0.5m higher than the approved.
88/01411/F - Change of use from disused petrol station to vehicle sales (retaining advertising
hoarding) – granted
APPLICATION
The 3 ‘paper and paste’ hoarding adverts would be removed. Advertising consent is sought for the
erection of 2 single sided digital adverts on free standing cantilevered support legs; one facing east
and one facing west. The height of the overall structures would be 6.7m above ground level. The
advertising displays themselves would be 3.56m in height by 6.43m in width. The adverts would be
angled at approximately 45˚ to the road to face oncoming traffic heading either east or west along
Bath Road. The supporting document states that the adverts would display static images in sequence,
changed remotely via a secure ISDN connection, and illuminated to a level consistent with the
Institute of Lighting Professional’s (ILP) guidance. The brightness of the displays is adjustable.
However, the application forms indicates that they would be set at their lower limit; 300 cdm² (night
time limit).
The Local Planning Authority are able to control the rate of image change and brightness by way of
the below conditions.
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
A site notice was issued and letters sent to neighbouring properties.
In total, comments from 68 separate addresses were received in response to the application, of which
67 were in objection.
IN OBJECTION
Comments (including from Bristol Civic Society, Totterdown Residents Environmental and Social
Action, and Christmas Steps Arts Quarter) were made in objection on the following grounds:
-The adverts would create dangerous conditions for road users on a very busy road with bus stops
and junctions (particularly for vulnerable users – pedestrians and cyclists)
-Visual impact on local character, cityscape and historic interests (The Thunderbolt public house listed
building and Thunderbolt Steps)
-Light pollution and nuisance in a residential area – particularly intrusive for future residents of the
residential scheme granted permission at the site opposite (18/04620/F Former Esso Garage)
-Adverts represent a bombardment and intrusion from excessive and invasive commercial messaging
that encourage consumerism
-Electricity requirements contrary to Council sustainability objectives (climate emergency)
-Elevated hillside location would mean they would be visible at night from far and wide

Page 23

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

-Will confuse and disturb local wildlife
-People with partial sight can become confused when approaching bright advertising boards
-Bad for Bristol’s image
IN SUPPORT
Comments were made in support on the following grounds:
-Adverts will demonstrate Bristol as a digital city. The current billboards are outdated. The quality of
advertising is often of higher quality. Spending helps boost our local economy. Many local companies,
charities and CIC rely on the advertising.
COMMENTS FROM COUNCILLORS
Councillor Jon Wellington – Objection
This is an entirely inappropriate site for illuminated digital advertising. The site is in very close to high
density residential areas including the nearby terraced housing on Bath Road, the Paintworks
development, and the New Walls estate. There is also planning permission recently granted for a high
density development on Bath Bridge, which is almost directly opposite this site. Illuminated billboards
will in my view substantially reduce the environment through light pollution and the degradation of
public areas.
Bath Road is a residential area. While it also serves the purpose of being a busy main route into and
out of Bristol city centre it is the people that live there that must be prioritised. I urge officers to reject
this proposal which would be damaging to the local environment and detrimental to the living
conditions of local residents.
Councillor Stephen Clarke - Objection
I object to this application because it will impact on road safety on this important road with a junction
nearby and because it causes an impact on the amenity of residents nearby.
Councillor Lucy Whittle – Objection
I believe illuminated adverts are a distraction for drivers and create an unpleasant environment for
residents and pedestrians.
COMMENTS FROM CONSULTEES
Transport Development Management – Objection to the West facing advert
Distraction and confusion can be caused by additional cognitive demand on a drivers’ attention,
leading to an increased risk of accidents. Where a driver is already experiencing significant demand
through challenging road layouts or other additional demands on their attention, it is important not to
add any further unnecessary distraction, particularly where there are vulnerable road users present.

Page 24

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

West facing advert
The site is situated in the view of the traffic controlled three arm Bath Road/ Totterdown Bridge
junction. The proposed digital sign is situated directly behind the signal heads when viewed from the
east bound approach. It is imperative to ensure that the attention of drivers is not averted from the
highway or from traffic signals.
Buses merge with the general traffic after the bus stop as they depart from the junction heading east;
the impacts of a driver being distracted and not noticing a bus merging in front of them could be
severe.
East facing advert
The advert is located such that it does not sit directly behind traffic signals and does not interfere with
the sight lines to the signals or junction. There is a straight approach to the advert and a driver would
have sufficient time to process the advert. The proposal would not be considered to cause a
significant distraction to the detriment of highway safety subject to conditions to ensure that the advert
does not change too frequently or exceed the permitted luminance level.
Policy Background and Planning Practice Guidance
Policy BCS10 of the Bristol Core Strategy states that developments should be designed and located
to ensure the provision of safe streets. Policy DM23 of the Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies outlines that development should not give rise to unacceptable traffic
conditions.
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) outlines that advertisements must not create a road
safety danger, by virtue of its siting or nature. Advertisements at points where drivers need to take
more care are more likely to affect public safety. The local conditions described above (traffic light
controlled three arm Bath Road/ Totterdown Bridge Junction and buses merging) means that this is
an area where drivers need to take more care.
The NPPG list of advert types which may cause danger to road users include the following two
categories:
Those which, because of their size or siting, would obstruct or confuse a road-user’s view, or reduce
the clarity or effectiveness of a traffic sign or signal, or would be likely to distract road-users because
of their unusual nature; and
Those externally or internally illuminated signs (incorporating either flashing or static lights) including
those utilising light emitting diode (LED) technology:
i. where the means of illumination is directly visible from any part of the road;
ii. which, because of their colour, could be mistaken for, or confused with, traffic lights or any other
authorised signals;
iii. which, because of their size or brightness, could result in glare and dazzle, or distract road-users,
particularly in misty or wet weather; or
iv. which are subject to frequent changes of the display

Page 25

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

It is considered that the west facing sign falls into these categories because of its LED sequentially
changing display, siting behind the traffic lights, and close proximity to an area where buses merge
into general traffic.
Existing Situation
The existing ‘paper and paste’ adverts that would be removed are not illuminated and by design can
only show one image before having to be manually replaced. Therefore, the proposed adverts
represent a material change to the public safety implications of the adverts at this site.
Previous Applications
Applications for digital adverts in Bristol have been refused on highway safety grounds and the
decisions upheld by Planning Inspectors, in recognition that sequentially changing digital advertising
is more likely to draw attention than the ‘paper and paste’ adverts that they would replace. For
example, Feeder Road where a recent proposal for the replacement of a ‘paper and paste’ advert with
a digital advert behind traffic lights was refused on public safety grounds, and dismissed at appeal.
However, whilst sites have similarities in terms of highways conditions, each digital advert application
is assessed on its own merits with regard to site specific circumstances.
Pollution Control – No objection subject to condition
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – March 2012
Bristol Local Plan comprising: Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017.
In determining this application, the local planning authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is no indication or
evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups have or would have
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular proposed development.
Overall, it is considered that the approval / refusal of this application would not have any significant
adverse impact upon different groups or implications for the Equalities Act 2010.

Page 26

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

KEY ISSUES
Part 1, Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England)
Regulations 2007 outlines that a local planning authority shall exercise its powers under these
Regulations in the interests of amenity and public safety, taking into account:
- The provisions of the development plan, so far as they are material; and
- Any other relevant factors.
A) IS THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF VISUAL AMENITY?
Factors relevant to amenity include the general characteristics of the locality, including the presence
of any features of historic, architectural, cultural or similar interest.
Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states that the quality and character of places can suffer when
advertisements are poorly sited and designed. Policy BCS21 of the Bristol Core Strategy states that
new development in Bristol should contribute positively to an area’s character and identity, creating or
reinforcing local distinctiveness.
The site has been host to hoarding adverts since at least the 1980’s and there have been other
adverts at the site associated with its previous uses; first as a petrol station before providing vehicle
sales. Therefore, purely in scale terms, the proposed adverts would not appear unusual in this
location. There would be a reduction in the number of adverts at the site (from 3 to 2) and although
the support legs would mean that the proposed adverts would be higher from ground level, the display
panels themselves would be considerably smaller. However, the digital led illuminated sequentially
changing display requires assessment in terms of amenity.
The application site is situated on a busy transport corridor. To the north is vacant brownfield land with
a section of the River Avon, and St Philip's Marsh Principal Industrial and Warehousing beyond; none
of which have been designated by reason of a visual amenity sensitivity. The site is not located within
a Conservation Area. There would be no impact on the setting of Arno's Vale Conservation Area, and
Arno's Vale Cemetery Registered Park and Garden and associated listed buildings because of the
intervening topography and the alignment of Bath Road which prevent inter-visibility.
The setting of The Thunderbolt Public House (Grade II listed) would include the proposed east facing
advert when approached from the east on Bath Road. However, the Public House is 140m from the
site; views of it from the east are at an acute angle; and the existing setting is characterised by
constant traffic noise and an unsympathetic use, in the car wash, next to it. Therefore, it is not
considered that the east facing advert would result in any material harm to the setting. Officers have
undertaken the assessment required under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and have given special regard to the desirability of preserving the
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
They have given the potential for harm considerable importance and weight in reaching this
conclusion.

Page 27

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

B) IS THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY?
Policy BCS21 of the Bristol Core Strategy states that new development in Bristol should safeguard the
amenity of existing development and create a high-quality environment for future occupiers.
The Council’s Pollution Control Team has assessed the proposal and do not object on grounds that
the positioning and orientation of the proposed digital advertising, and the illuminance levels given in
the application, are acceptable. However, the below obtrusive light limitation condition is considered
necessary and reasonable in order to ensure an acceptable impact. Pollution Control is aware of the
approved residential development opposite the site (18/04620/F).
Therefore, light omitted by the adverts is not considered to be harmful to existing and proposed
residential amenity to the north, east and west of the site. The approved residential development
opposite the site (18/04620/F) has not commenced.
Given the above assessment Officers have concluded that the proposed advertisements would not
cause any unacceptable harm to amenity (visual or residential) as set out by The Town and Country
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.
It is also noted that there is permission (17/06513/A) already in place for two digital adverts with the
same siting and panel size as proposed by this application.
C) IS THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF PUBLIC (HIGHWAYS) SAFETY?
With reference to public safety the Act states that factors relevant to public safety include:
-the safety of persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome (civil or
military);
-whether the display of the advertisement in question is likely to obscure, or hinder the ready
interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or aid to navigation by water or air;
-whether the display of the advertisement in question is likely to hinder the operation of any device
used for the purpose of security or surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.
Transport Development Management (TDM) has assessed the application and concluded that the
proposed west facing sign would be sited close to, and within site line of, two points where road users
need to take more care. The first being the east bound approach to the Totterdown Bridge/Bath Road
junction traffic lights where the view of the advert is directly behind the signal heads, and the second
being the area after the junction where east bound buses merge with general traffic meaning road
users could be distracted by the advert at the same that busses are pulling out in front of them. It is
considered that the LED illumination and sequentially changing digital display has the potential to
distract and confuse road users in relation to their perception of the traffic light signals and bus
movements at points that already place additional demands on their attention. Subsequently, it is
considered the west facing advert would be prejudicial to public safety.
There are no objections to the east facing advert due to the differing context of the siting. The Local
Planning Authority are able to control the rate of image change and brightness by way of the below
conditions.

Page 28

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

Based on the above conclusions, Officers have concluded that the proposed west facing advert would
have an unacceptable impact on public safety as set out by The Town and Country Planning (Control
of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007, the NPPG, and local policy.
CONCLUSION
A split decision is recommended.
It is considered that both of the proposed advertisements would not cause any unacceptable harm to
amenity. It is considered that the proposed east facing advert would have an acceptable impact on
public safety. However, the proposed west facing advert is considered prejudicial to road safety and
therefore should be refused in the interests of public safety.
Therefore, Officers recommend a split decision; the approval of the east facing advert subject to the
below conditions, and the refusal of the west facing advert.
RECOMMENDED

Split Decision

East facing sign as shown on the proposed site block plan ref. A01402/02.
Permission is granted subject to the following condition(s)
Post occupation management
1.

Standard Advertisement time condition
This consent shall be restricted to a period of five years from the date of the consent.
Reason: This condition is specified by the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

2.

Digital Advertisement Conditions
1.
No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission.
2.

No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to:-

(a)
endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome
(civil or military);
(b)
obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of any traffic sign, railway signal or aid to
navigation by water or air; or
(c)
hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or surveillance or
for measuring the speed of any vehicle.
3.
Any advertisement displayed and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall
be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.
4.
Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public.

Page 29

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

5.
Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site
shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity.
6.
The advertisement must have static images only for the lifetime of the development. No
moving or apparently moving images, strobe or flashing lighting effects are permitted.
7.
The advertisement must not contain any images which may be interpreted as road
signs or emit sound, smoke or odours.
8.
The advertisement must not change its image more than once in any ten second period
for the lifetime of the development. No interactive messages or messaging sequences are to
be displayed.
9.
The proposed change in image method for the advertisement must use a fade/dissolve
process and shall not give the appearance of movement for the lifetime of the development.
Any sequential change between advertisements will take place over a period no greater than
one second.
10.
The advertisement shall be equipped with a dimmer control and photo cell which shall
constantly monitor ambient lighting conditions and adjust sign brightness accordingly. The
advertisement will go to a blank (dark) screen should it malfunction.
11.
The luminance level of the advertisement must not exceed 300cd/m² for the lifetime of
the development. No part of the source of the illumination shall at any time be directly visible to
users of the adjacent adopted highway.
12.
Before the advertisement is displayed a monitoring scheme to assess the effect on
highway safety shall be prepared, submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Monitoring shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
13.
The advertisement shall not be installed until an access, maintenance and inspection
plan in relation to the advert unit has been prepared, submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the advert unit shall be maintained in accordance
throughout its lifetime in accordance with the approved plan.
14.
When in operation the advertisement shall be monitored over a period of six months
with reports produced on the luminance and effects on lighting of the adopted highway based
on the surrounding lighting conditions, and the effects of the advertisement on road safety and
in agreement with Local Planning Authority make recommended adjustments.
Reason: These conditions are specified by the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 and to avoid undue distraction to motorists.
3.

Artificial Lighting
Any light created by reason of the development shall meet the Obtrusive Light Limitations for
Exterior Lighting Installations in table 2 of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for
the Reduction of Obtrusive Lighting, GN01:2011.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity.

Page 30

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04821/A : Plot Of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road Totterdown
Bristol BS4 3EF

West facing sign as shown on the proposed site block plan ref. A01402/02.

Permission is refused
The following reason(s) for refusal are associated with this decision:
1.

The proposed west facing digital advertisement (as shown on the proposed site block plan ref.
A01402/02), by reason of its location and nature, has the potential to distract road users and to
cause drivers to lose concentration and come into conflict with other vehicles, pedestrians and
cyclists. The proposed digital advertisement's potential for conflict with the safe operation of
the public highway network is therefore contrary to the NPPF; policy BCS10 of the Core
Strategy (June 2011), policy DM23 of the Site Allocations and Development Management
Policies (July 2014), and guidance on advertisements contained within Planning Practice
Guidance (PPG).

List of plans and drawings
The following plans and drawings were considered as part of the above application:
A01402/08 Structure detail, received 3 October 2019
A01402/01 Site location plan, received 3 October 2019
A01402/02 Site block plan, received 3 October 2019
A01402/07 Sign elevation and dimensions, received 3 October 2019
A01402/09 Screen specifications, received 3 October 2019
A01402/06 Display panel, received 3 October 2019
commdelgranted
V1.0211

Page 31

Supporting Documents
1.

Plot of Land Fronting Former 164 - 188 Bath Road, Totterdown
1.
2.
3.

Site location plan
Proposed block plan
Proposed elevations

Page 32

Location plan

Page 33

Proposed block plan

Page 34

Proposed elevations

Page 35

Agenda Item 8b
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020

ITEM NO. 2

WARD:

Clifton Down

SITE ADDRESS:

Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

APPLICATION NO:

19/04744/F
19/04745/LA

Full Planning
Listed Building Consent (Alter/Extend)

DETERMINATION
20 December 2019
DEADLINE:
Change of use from a Use Class A4 drinking with establishment with associated residential unit to
flexible ground floor uses (A1, A2 and A3) and a house in multiple occupation (sui generis) with
associated partial demolition, internal and external alterations, refuse and cycle storage.
RECOMMENDATION:
AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

Aspect360 Ltd
45 Oakfield Road
Clifton
Bristol
BS8 2AX

APPLICANT:

Chatford Properties Ltd
c/o agent

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

03/02/20 10:19

Page 36

Committee report

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F & 19/04545/LA : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road
Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

SUMMARY
These applications seek planning permission and listed building consent for the proposed change of
use, extension and alteration of the Black Boy Inn, 171 Whiteladies Road to create a ground floor
commercial unit as well as an 8 bedroom shared multiple occupancy dwelling (Large HMO, Sui
Generis planning use). Permission is sought for the commercial element on a flexible basis, with the
applicant seeking retail, financial and professional services or café/restaurant uses. The site is located
to the northern end of Whiteladies Road within Clifton Down ward and the applications have been
referred for determination by Committee by ward Councillor Clive Stevens. The reason for referral
relates to concerns centring on the enforceability of HMO management and HMO impact to local
amenity. The applications received 2 objections, 1 comment classified as neutral and 3 comments in
support following public consultation.
The key planning issues relate to loss of the existing use of the site as a pub, the acceptability of
commercial and shared residential accommodation. Other issues include impact to neighbouring
amenity, impact to heritage assets as the building is statutorily listed and located within a conservation
area and also highways impacts. Policy indicates that loss of pubs is acceptable where it is
demonstrated that a diverse range of public house provision exists within the locality. It this case there
a minimum of 14 pubs within 800m or 10minutes walk of the site. This is found to be sufficient to
represent a diverse range of pubs for the locality. As a consequence, it is not found in this instance
that the loss of the pub would be detrimental to social interaction and community activity. With regards
to the proposed commercial use, proposals for retail, financial and professional services and
café/restaurant use are in accordance with policy objectives within Whiteladies Road designated
Town Centre and also the Primary Shopping Area. In this case, the proposed shared multiple
occupancy dwelling would avoid resulting in a harmful concentration of such accommodation and
avoid harmfully impacting local housing mix and balance. This has been tested against the broad
principles of the emerging HMO SPD (2020) which is currently out to public consultation and is found
to pass in respect of the information available at this time. The impacts of the proposed commercial
and multiple occupancy residential uses to neighbouring amenity have been carefully considered. The
Pollution Control team have recommended a series of conditions including details of sound insulation
in order to preserve an acceptable standard of amenity. The proposed uses themselves are not
judged to cause undue risk of harm. Should detrimental conditions arise in future, these can be
managed under Pollution Control and Licensing legislation. Highways have recommended that no
parking permits are issued within surrounding Residents Parking Schemes which will ensure no
significant increased on street parking pressure. Proposals for bin storage and cycle parking are
deemed to accord with policy objectives and will be secured by condition. The development is
therefore found to be in accordance with relevant national and local planning policy. No material
considerations have been identified by Officers which would warrant the refusal of planning
permission. It is therefore the recommendation of Officers that permission is granted subject to
conditions herein.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The site is located on the eastern side of Whiteladies Road at the junction with Lower Redland Road.
This is within Clifton Down ward. The site is rectangular in shape with the building spanning the
majority, positioned level with both footways on Whiteladies Road and Lower Redland Road. The site
contains a three storey, terraced building with the established use as a public house (use class A4)
known as the Black Boy Inn. The building dates from approximately 1840 and is Listed at grade II
level along with the wider terrace for its historic significance. There are entrances on both the western
and southern elevation. The western elevation to Whiteladies Road includes a traditional timber
shopfront. The building is faced with limestone ashlar and includes decorative cornices to first-floor
windows and recessed surrounds to second floor. The roof is hipped, clad with tiles and hidden
behind a raised parapet. The building has been vacant since the pub ceased trading in approximately
May 2019. The ground floor contains a bar, small kitchen area and external yard to the rear. The first

Page 37

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F & 19/04545/LA : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road
Bristol BS8 2RY
and second floors comprise ancillary office and residential accommodation. The site is located within
the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area, Whiteladies Road Town Centre and forms part of the
designated Whiteladies Road North Primary Shopping Area. The Clifton Down ward is covered by an
Article 4 Direction which removes permitted development rights relating to change of use of dwellings
(use class C3) to houses in multiple occupation (use class C4).
PLANNING HISTORY
16/02938/A & 16/02945/LA
2.no replacement timber fascia signs, 1.no replacement timber
hanging sign, 1.no replacement timber amenity board, 2.no poster cases and 2.no lanterns.
Repainting of render area to front elevation
GRANTED - 21.07.2016
11/01369/LA
Minor internal alterations to male and female toilets. Proposed works are to
convert male toilets into kitchen storage/wash room and turn female toilets into unisex toilets
GRANTED - 04.07.2011
07/05030/LA
Removal of stud wall between counter, replacement of counters. Alteration,
removal and provision of new partitions to existing kitchen. Replacement of kitchen door. Formation of
smoking area replacement of kitchen roof
GRANTED - 04.04.2008
07/02870/LA
Removal of central bar wall, alteration to staircase layout, alteration of bar
servery, counters & kitchen & replacement of existing glazed roof structure to rear of premises with a
new flat roof
REFUSED - 18.09.2007
07/02869/F
roof

Replacement of existing glazed roof structure to rear of premises with new flat
GRANTED - 04.04.2008

APPLICATION
The current applications seek both planning permission and listed building consent for the proposed
change of use, internal and external alteration of the building to create a new commercial unit as well
as a shared multiple occupancy 8 bedroom dwelling (Sui Generis). Permission for the commercial unit
is sought for retail (use class A1), financial and professional services (use class A2) and
café/restaurant (use class A3) uses.
The development would result in loss of the established use as a pub. It is proposed to create a
revised commercial unit in the western part of the building. This would include the basement and
ground floor levels. The commercial unit would be accessed from Whiteladies Road and the shopfront
would be retained and refurbished in this location. A new internal wall is proposed which would follow
the traditional party wall dividing the proposed commercial and residential elements.
To the rear of the building in the yard area it is proposed to demolish the existing non-original
extension and replace this with a revised design. The proposed extension would measure 3m in depth
by 3.3m in width. The extension would include a flat roof with glazed roof lantern and a maximum
height of 3m. Beyond the proposed extension a cycle parking area is proposed for x6 bikes. This
would include x3 Sheffield stands with a flat roof over. Storage of wheeled bins and recycling storage
is also proposed in this area.
The proposed shared accommodation would include x8 bedrooms across the first and second floors.
These would all be single occupancy rooms. Living accommodation and a kitchen are proposed at
ground floor level. This would be a large house of multiple occupation (Sui Generis). Various internal
partition alterations are proposed to accommodate the proposed use.
Externally it is proposed to remove existing lighting from the front elevations of the building. It is
proposed to reinstate the original domestic entrance to the eastern side of the Lower Redland Road

Page 38

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F & 19/04545/LA : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road
Bristol BS8 2RY
elevation. Refurbishment of certain windows is also proposed. Signage relating to the pub would be
retained. An array of solar panels is proposed to the south facing pitched roof face.
Cycle parking for the commercial unit is proposed within a modified version of an existing entrance in
the Lower Redland Road elevation. This would accommodate a single bike. Commercial bin storage
is proposed within the basement area.
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The proposed development is classed as 'Minor' development; therefore there is no requirement for
the Applicant to demonstrate community engagement prior to submitting the application.
EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is no indication or
evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups have or would have
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular proposed development.
Overall, it is considered that the approval of this application would not have any significant adverse
impact upon different groups or implications for the Equalities Act 2010.
RESPONSE FROM PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
45 neighbouring properties were directly notified of the application via neighbour notification letter.
The proposed development was also advertised via site notice and a local press advert.
The deadline for responses was 4th November 2019.
Following this, a total of 6 responses were received. 3 comments supported the application, 1 was
classified neutral and 2 responses raised objections to the development.
Grounds of objection are summarised as follows:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Loss of pub regretted
"Aren't there enough HMO's in this area already"
Efforts should be made to run the pub differently such as with no food
Location not suitable for 8 bedroom HMO
"Where will cars get parked?"
Car parking in local area already pressurised/at capacity
Potential for 16 residents
Cycle parking does not solve car parking issues

CASE OFFICER RESPONSES TO PUBLIC CONSULTATION
It is highlighted that the residential aspect of the proposed development would be a large house in
multiple occupation including 8 bedrooms (Sui Generis planning use). It is noted that a comment
submitted above has suggested this could result in up to 16 occupants. It is highlighted that this form
of accommodation would require a Mandatory HMO License. If granted, the license would limit the
occupancy of the property. The property is not large enough to meet required standards for 16
individuals and therefore a license would not be granted on this basis. Any eventual license would
also be accompanied with a standard condition (14) which outlines the landlord "Must ensure that
there is no obligate sharing of bedrooms". This will ensure the occupancy is retained at the intended
level.

Page 39

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F & 19/04545/LA : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road
Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

Additionally, it is highlighted that Transport Development Management have recommended that the
development is treated as car free and residents would be ineligible for parking permits in the
surrounding residents' parking schemes (Cotham North & Clifton East). This measure will ensure that
the development does not significantly increase on street parking pressure in the local area.
A full assessment of the policy compliance of the loss of the public house and suitability of the site for
shared multiple occupancy dwelling will follow in the subsequent assessment section of this report.
ELECTED MEMEBERS & AMENITY GROUP RESPONSES
Clifton Down Ward Councillor Clive Stevens referred the application to Committee for
determination and commented on the application as follows:
"The proposed premises management plan (as a condition) has requirements that are unenforceable
by Planning Enforcement. It also doesn't include other factors which could be enforceable for example
maximum number of people on the premises. Whilst it could well be a good idea to have premises
enforcement plans for properties operating as Houses of Multiple Occupation the requirements must
be enforceable via Planning. I have not been persuaded of this. For example "not to cause a noise
that can be heard outside the residence between 11pm and 7am". Whilst this is a good idea, what will
happen if noise is audible at say 1am? Who do neighbours complain to? (the University, Chatford
Properties, the police or noise enforcement)? How will it be monitored and if there are regular
breaches what will happen to the owner, Chatford? (Chatford say they will evict the tenant but if the
tenants are only staying there for a year then they will leave anyway). The enforcement must require
remedies on Chatford Properties".
The Conservation Advisory Panel commented in support of the application stating the following:
"Whilst regretting the loss of a public house, the Panel supports this application in principle. However,
it is noted that prior to 1960 the ground floor of the Lower Redland Road section of the building was a
shopfront that included a door. The proposed design of the proposed new door in the right hand bay
to this element of the building was uncomfortable in position and style. The treatment of the ground
floor section of this bay must be reconsidered. Reinstatement of the multipane sashes should be
considered".
The Redland and Cotham Amenities Society (RCAS) commented on the application as follows:
"RCAS welcomes the changes to the proposed scheme which improve the waste and recycling
storage provision and change the use of the ground floor room to a living room. We are happy to
support the revised scheme. If you are minded to approve this application, we ask that a condition is
put on an approval that bins must be stored off the street to help with future enforcement".
Bristol Civic Society provided a neutral comment on the application which stated:
"Bristol Civic Society regrets the loss of the public house but, if the Council accepts that, the Society
broadly supports the proposal. We question the appropriateness of using a ground floor room
adjacent to the street as a bedroom".
INTERNAL & EXTERNAL CONSULTEES
Conservation Officer, Bristol City Council:
No objections to the proposed change of use, internal or external alterations subject to safeguarding
conditions requiring construction details.

Page 40

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F & 19/04545/LA : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road
Bristol BS8 2RY
Pollution Control Officer, Bristol City Council:

Item no. 2

Sound insulation is mentioned in paragraphs 4.49 and 4.50 4.51 of the Planning Statement which
states:
4.49 As the site fronts a relatively busy main road, based on other recent consented developments
in similar locations, the glazing specification is for an acoustic rating of 46 dB Rw with a min
performance at 125Hz of 30dB, detail of which could be provided as a condition of any future planning
consent.
4.50 Acoustic separation can be provided between the ground floor use and first floor
accommodation with details provided if required by a condition of a future consent.
As suggested I am happy with the approach of further details being provided by condition. Following
issues with some other HMO applications I also have some concerns regarding the provision of
bathrooms on the 1st and second floors on the party wall with 3 Lower Redland Road. I would
therefore also like to further details of this but would again be happy for this to be provided by
condition.
Finally I would also ask for conditions regarding extraction, servicing, plant noise and servicing of the
ground floor commercial use.
Transport Development Management, Bristol City Council:
Refer to standing advice.

RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – February 2019
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 and the Hengrove and
Whitchurch Park Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019.
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
Whiteladies Road Conservation Area Enhancement Statement 1993
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.

Page 41

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

ASSESSMENT
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
Loss of established use as public house
Section 8 (Promoting Healthy & Safe Communities) of the NPPF (2019) states that "to provide the
social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning policies and
decisions should: plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities
(such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses
and places of worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and
residential environments". The policy proceeds to state that planning policies and decisions should:
"guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly where this would
reduce the community's ability to meet its day-to-day needs".
At local level, Policy BCS12 (Community Facilities) of the Bristol Core Strategy (2011) reflects
national guidance by outlining: "Existing community facilities should be retained, unless it can be
demonstrated that there is no longer a need to retain the use or where alternative provision is made.
Where community facilities are provided as an integral part of a development they should wherever
possible be within adaptable mixed-use buildings".
Policy DM5 (Protection of Community Facilities) of the Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies Local Plan (2014) more specifically states that "proposals involving the loss of
community facilities land or buildings will not be permitted unless it is demonstrated that:
i.

The loss of the existing community use would not create, or add to, a shortfall in the provision
or quality of such uses within the locality or, where the use has ceased, that there is no need
or demand for any other suitable community facility that is willing or able to make use of the
building(s) or land; or

ii.

The building or land is no longer suitable to accommodate the current community use and
cannot be retained or sensitively adapted to accommodate other community facilities; or

iii.

The community facility can be fully retained, enhanced or reinstated as part of any
redevelopment of the building or land; or

iv.

Appropriate replacement community facilities are provided in a suitable alternative location".

The supporting text of Policy DM5 states that the term community facilities is wide-ranging and can
include local pubs.
The supporting text also outlines that when making an assessment of the importance of the
community facility consideration should be given to the following:
Local need and demand for the existing community facility or other community facilities that are willing
and able to make use of the building(s) or land;
o

The extent and quality of local provision of the existing community facility;

o

The nature, pattern and frequency of activities taking place at the site;

o

Its contribution to the diversity of community facilities in the locality;

o

The accessibility of the site and other local community facilities by walking, cycling and
public transport;

Page 42

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY
o

o

Item no. 2

In the case of commercial community facilities (such as pubs), whether the use is no
longer viable (applicants will need to submit evidence to demonstrate that the site is no longer
viable for that use and has been adequately marketed. The latter should be undertaken in
accordance with the guidelines on the carrying out of marketing which are available to view on
the council's website under planning advice and guidance.);
Whether the site or building has been listed as an asset of community value.

Policy DM6 (Public Houses) in the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies Local Plan
further states that proposals involving the loss of established public houses will not be permitted
unless it is demonstrated that:
i.

The public house is no longer economically viable; or

ii.

A diverse range of public house provision exists within the locality.

The policy supporting text outlines:
"Where the loss of an established pub is proposed applicants will need to provide evidence clearly
showing that the pub is no longer economically viable. Viability assessments must include analysis of
trade potential, the existing business and evidence of adequate marketing. Regard will be had to the
Campaign for Real Ale's (CAMRA) Public House Viability Test. In such cases the council will submit
the viability assessment for independent validation, with any reasonable costs for the validation
process met by the applicant."
The Black Boy Inn has been a long established pub on Whiteladies Road and contributed significantly
to the local community over an extended period. Information regarding the preceding operations and
process undertaken to the point of recent sale of the building is detailed in a letter submitted
accompanying the application. This is by commercial property agents Christie & Co (Graeme Clifford,
Business Agent) who undertook the sale on behalf of the previous owner Enterprise Inns Plc (Ei
Group). Enterprise Inns are the largest pub company in the UK, with around 5,000 properties,
predominantly run as leased and tenanted pubs. It is understood that several tenants operated the
pub under Enterprise Inns ownership from 2004. However the pub struggled to remain competitive
and profitable. It is suggested there are a variety of factors for this. It is recognised that the pub is
located in an area which is very well supplied in terms of food and drink options. It is also stated that
industry changes have played a role including the diversification of pubs to provide greater food
options. In this regard the Black Boy Inn struggled due to limited kitchen size and dining area. The
historic nature of the listed building is suggested to have placed limitations on its operations as a
modern pub. The site also has no publicly accessible outdoor area which is problematic following the
introduction of the smoking ban. The building also generated excessive rates due to the scale of the
first and second floors. Following a series of temporary tenancies, Enterprise Inns eventually took the
decision to sell the freehold. It is understood there were high levels of interest in the site. 24 viewings
were conducted prior to sale. However, only two viewings were with pub operators and neither
expressed serious interest. None of the seven applicants who expressed an intention to make an offer
planned to re-open the property as a public house or restaurant.
As noted above, Policy DM6 states that proposals involving the loss of established public houses will
not be permitted unless it is demonstrated that the public house is no longer economically viable; or a
diverse range of public house provision exists within the locality. In this case, the fact the pub ceased
trading and the letter from the commercial property agent provide a variety of factors as to why the
pub may have been economically unviable. It is however noted that evidence of viability has not been
submitted (e.g. detailed financial accounts) and a Campaign for Real Ale (CAMRA) Public House
Viability Test has not been undertaken. It therefore cannot be concluded on the basis of information
submitted that another owner could not have ran a profitable pub at the site. The application therefore
seeks to rely of the second policy criterion which relates to a diverse range of pubs existing within the

Page 43

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

locality.
Whiteladies Road is a designated town centre and the site itself is within the Whiteladies Road North
Primary Shopping Area. For testing public house provision, the LPA defines the 'locality' to relates to
an 800m radius surrounding the site. This is based on the Government's Manual for Streets where
'walkable neighbourhoods' are considered as having a range of facilities within about 800m or at
average pace 10 minutes walking distance. In this case, the LPA has identified the following pubs
within 800m of the site:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

The Jersey Lily, 193 Whiteladies Road
The Kings Arms, 168 Whiteladies Road
Beaufort Arms, 23 High Street, Clifton
Port of Call, 3 York Street
Coach & Horses, 2 Highland Square
The Clyde at Redland, 129 Hampton Road
The Cambridge Arms, Coldharbour Road
The Shakespeare, Woolcot Street/Lower Redland Road
Chums, 22 Chandos Road
The Good Measure, 2B Chandos Road
The Penny, 115 Whiteladies Road
Brewhouse and Kitchen, 31-35 Cotham Hill
Steam, Clifton Down Station
W.G. Grace, 71-73 Whiteladies Road

This list is not exhaustive. It does not include venues such as cafes, bars or more recent hybrid uses
which may provide may similar characteristics to a pub but also sell produce for consumption off site
(for example: Two Belly, 116 Whiteladies Road or Coffee + Beer, 16 Cotham Hill). There are however
a minimum of 14 dedicated pubs (use class A4) within 10 minutes' walk of the site. Notwithstanding
the contribution which other food and drink venues in different planning use classes make as
community facilities, this is found to be sufficient to represent a diverse range of pubs for the locality.
As a consequence, it is not found in this instance that the loss of the pub would be detrimental to
social interaction and community activity. The proposed change of use is found to accord with the
objectives of national and local policy and as a result is acceptable in this regard.
Acceptability of proposed use as large house in multiple occupation
Section 5 (Delivering a sufficient supply of homes) of the NPPF outlines that "To support the
Government's objective of significantly boosting the supply of homes, it is important that a sufficient
amount and variety of land can come forward where it is needed, that the needs of groups with
specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with permission is developed without
unnecessary delay". Strategic policies should be informed by a local housing need assessment
outlining the minimum number of homes needed. The size, type and tenure of housing needed for
different groups in the community should be assessed and reflected in planning policies.
Section 11 (Making effective use of land) of the NPPF states that "Planning policies and decisions
should promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while
safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions".
Paragraph 118 (d) states that planning should "promote and support the development of underutilised land and buildings, especially if this would help to meet identified needs for housing where
land supply is constrained and available sites could be used more effectively".
Policy BCS5 (Housing Provision) of the Core Strategy outlines that delivery of housing to meet the
Council's housing targets will primarily be focused on previously developed sites however some open
space will be utilised for housing development. The strategy by which the Council will allow
development of open space is set out within the Site Allocations & Development Management Policies

Page 44

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

(SADMP) Local Plan.
Policy BCS10 (Transport and Access Improvements) of the Core Strategy states that development
proposals should be located where sustainable travel patterns can be achieved, with more intensive,
higher density mixed use development at accessible centres and along or close to main public
transport routes. Proposals should minimise the need to travel, especially by private car, and
maximise opportunities for the use of walking, cycling and public transport.
Policy BCS18 (Housing Type) of the Core Strategy states that all new residential development should
maintain, provide or contribute to a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes to help support the
creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities.
Policy BCS20 (Effective and Efficient Use of Land) states that new development will maximise
opportunities to re-use previously developed land. Where development is planned opportunities will
be sought to use land more efficiently across the city. Imaginative design solutions will be encouraged
at all sites to ensure optimum efficiency in the use of land is achieved. Higher densities of
development will be sought:
i.
ii.
iii.

In and around the city centre;
In or close to other centres;
Along or close to main public transport routes.

For residential development a minimum indicative net density of 50 dwellings per hectare will be
sought. Net densities below 50 dwelling per hectare should only occur where it is essential to
safeguard the special interest and character of the area.
Policy DM1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) of the Site Allocations and
Development Management Policies Local Plan (SADMP) outlines that the city's approach to
development proposals will generally be positive and reflective of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development as referenced throughout the NPPF.
Policy DM2 (Residential Sub-Divisions & Specialist Housing) of the SADMP outlines that the subdivision of existing accommodation provides an important contribution to Bristol's housing choice. The
policy aims to ensure that sub-divisions preserve the residential amenity and character of an area and
that harmful concentrations do not arise. Specifically, subdivision of existing dwellings to flats, houses
in multiple occupation and creation of shared housing will not be permitted where excessive noise or
disturbance, unacceptable pressure on car parking, harmful physical alterations to buildings or
inadequate cycle/bin provisions would result. Furthermore, where subdivision would result in
unacceptable concentrations of particular housing types within an area, which would have harmful
implications for the available housing mix, subdivision will not be supported. Where subdivision is
permitted, dwellings must meet relevant space standards and provide a good standard of
accommodation.
The Council has produced an emerging Houses in Multiple Occupation SPD on which first
consultation will be launched in February 2020. This is intended to directly support Policy DM2
(above), relating specifically to houses in multiple occupation, providing further guidance on particular
aspects of the policy. Whilst the document is yet to go through consultation and consequently
currently is afforded very limited weight in decision making, the principles discussed remain relevant
given they are directly linked to interpretation of adopted policy.
The document recognised that HMOs form part of the city's private rented housing stock and
contribute positively to people's housing choice. This form of accommodation is generally more
affordable and flexible and therefore suitable for younger people, including students, and other
households that are not living as families. It is however recognised that HMOs are more intensive
form of accommodation than traditional flats or dwellings. Typically this increases dependent on the

Page 45

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

level of occupancy.
General issues associated with HMOs include:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Noise and disturbance
Detriment to visual amenity (through external alterations and poor waste management)
Reduced community facilities
Highway safety concerns (from increased parking)
Reduced housing choice
Reduced community engagement
Reduced social cohesion

The HMO SPD expands on DM2 to provide a definition of what represents a 'harmful concentration' in
the wording of the policy. This relates to two principles; local level and area level. At local level, a
harmful concentration is found to exist where 'sandwiching' occurs. This is where a dwelling (use class
C3) is sandwiched on both sides by HMOs. With regards to the wider area, a harmful concentration is
found to exist where a threshold proportion of 10% HMOs within a 100m radius of the site occurs.
This is generally identified as a tipping point, beyond which negative impacts to residential amenity
and character are likely to be experienced and housing choice and community cohesion start to
weaken. However each case will need to be assessed on its own merits.
In the case of the Black Boy Inn, it is noted that the site is located within Whiteladies Road Town
Centre. As such, the site is within an area where Core Strategy policy (above) indicates that higher
density mixed use development shall be supported. This includes residential development in order to
encourage sustainable transit patterns. Future residents would have a good range of shops and
services within a short walk of the site. Whiteladies Road is a major transit route to/from the city
centre and served by a multitude of buses including services 1, 2, 3 and 4. These can be accessed
via stops approximately 120m or 2 minutes' walk south of the site at Apsley Road. This would provide
future users of the site a high frequency public transport service to the site from a wide range of
different parts of the city. The location is also a short walk (520m or 6 minutes) from Clifton Down
Railway Station, offering additional access to the site by rail services. The sites BrisTAL (Bristol
Transport Accessibility Level) rating is 6a which is the second highest rating, reflective of the high level
of public transport accessibility to the site. The site is therefore very well connected to the town centre
and wider city. Residential development at this location would successfully encourage use of active
and low carbon transport including walking, cycling and public transport, minimising the need to travel,
especially by private car. The development would make more efficient use of an existing building in
order to provide residential accommodation at a policy compliant location. On this basis,
the use of the site for HMO purposes is supported in this instance.
With regards to the proposed 8 bedroom house in multiple occupation accommodation, the site is
located within the Clifton Down ward and the Lower Redland Road Lower Super Output Area. Census
data for the local area (LSOA) shows that 43.3% of people within the area live in houses and 56.7% of
people live in flats, maisonettes and apartments. Census data therefore shows that accommodation
within the existing area is balanced in favour of flats. The proposed development would not result in
the loss of any existing residential accommodation. As such, the proposals would not negatively
impact the availability of family accommodation locally. Of households locally, census data shows that
there are 33.5% one person households, 48% one family households, 8.8% multi person houses
comprising full time students and 9.7% multi person houses comprising others. It is therefore clear
that the majority of households locally are either families or individuals. Only 20% of accommodation
within the total LSOA is shared occupancy including HMOs. This relates to the LSOA which extends
significantly beyond the 100m radius as referenced within the HMO SPD.
Based on current licensing data there are a total of 11 licensed HMO's within a 100m radius of the
site. This represents 4.7% percent of properties within 100m. It is noted that whilst a tool is being
developed to calculate this automatically, this is not yet finalised and therefore the calculation has

Page 46

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

been undertaken manually based on all information currently available in this instance. This would
beneath the 10% local threshold which is identified within the HMO SPD to indicate a harmful
concentration. Furthermore, the properties to either side of the site and the neighbouring sites
beyond this (173 Whiteladies Road and 3 Lower Redland Road) are not HMO's and as a result no
sandwiching would be created. The proposed HMO would therefore not represent a harmful
concentration as defined within the emerging HMO SPD. With regards to purpose built student
accommodation, it is noted there are two properties in use for this purpose within 100m of the site.
These are 169 Whiteladies Road which comprises 5 bed spaces and 140A Whiteladies Road which
comprises 29 bed spaces. This is recognisably a different use to that currently proposed however
there are some similar characteristics. Given the level of HMO's within 100m of the site, the presence
of these two adjacent purpose built student properties is not found to exceed the threshold to
represent a harmful concentration. The proposed HMO would avoid contributing to any harmful
imbalance of type or size of accommodation found within the local area. A mix of housing tenures,
types and sizes would be retained, supporting a mixed, balanced and inclusive community. The
proposed accommodation would accord with the objectives of national and local policy and as a result
is acceptable in this regard.
Proposed Commercial Uses
Section 7 (Ensuring the vitality of town centres) of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF,
2019) outlines that "planning policies and decisions should support the role that town centres play at
the heart of local communities, by taking a positive approach to their growth, management and
adaptation."
Annex 2 (Glossary) of the NPPF states that main town centre uses include retail development
(including warehouse clubs and factory outlet centres); leisure, entertainment and more intensive
sport and recreation uses (including cinemas, restaurants, drive-through restaurants, bars and pubs,
nightclubs, casinos, health and fitness centres, indoor bowling centres and bingo halls); offices; and
arts, culture and tourism development (including theatres, museums, galleries and concert halls,
hotels and conference facilities).
Policy BCS7 of the Core Strategy outlines that retail development, offices, leisure and entertainment
uses, arts, culture and tourism uses will be primarily located within or, where appropriate, adjoining
town centres identified within BCS7.
Policy DM7 (Town Centre Uses) of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies
(SADMP) outlines that retail and other main town centre uses should be located within the centres
identified on the Policies Map.
Policy DM8 (Shopping Areas & Frontages) of the SADMP outlines that within the primary and
secondary retail frontage, development will be expected to maintain or provide active ground floor
uses. Specific to the primary shopping area, change of use of shops (Use Class A1) to another use
will not be permitted unless the proposed use would:
i.

Make a positive contribution to the vitality, viability and diversity of the Primary Shopping Area
and centre; and

ii.

Not fragment any part of the Primary Shopping Area by creating a significant break in the
shopping frontage; and

iii.

Not result in a loss of retail floorspace of a scale harmful to the shopping function of the centre;
and

iv.

Be compatible with a retail area in that it includes a shopfront with a display function and would
be immediately accessible to the public from the street.

Page 47

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

The application seeks permission for a commercial unit with flexible retail (use class A1), financial and
professional services (use class A2) and café/restaurant (use class A3) permission. The unit could
then be occupied and used for any of these purposes dependent of tenant. As a town centre and part
of the primary shopping area, it is highlighted that the site represents an area where retail use is
supported by planning policy. The proposals include retention and refurbishment of the existing timber
shopfront, directly accessible from the street in accordance with Policy DM8. The adjacent
commercial units to the north on Whiteladies Road (173 and 175) are both in retail (use class A1) use
as a sandwich shop and barbershop. The unit to the south (169 Whiteladies Road) is also a shop and
those adjacent on Lower Redland Road (3 and 5 Lower Redland Road) are also shops.
Consequently, if the commercial unit was to be used for a use which was not retail such as financial
and professional services or café/restaurant, it would avoid harmfully fragmenting the shopping
parade. Furthermore, the existing use of the site is not retail but as a pub and consequently the
proposals result in no loss of retail floor area within the shopping area. Dependent on tenant, the
proposals may create additional retail floor area which would make a positive contribution to the
shopping area. Financial and professional services or café/restaurant use would retain similar
characteristics, generate footfall and support the primary shopping area by contributing to its vitality.
Overall, the proposed commercial uses are deemed acceptable to the town centre location and in
accordance with policy objectives in this location.
Existing and Proposed Use Conclusion
As a result of the preceding assessment, loss of the existing pub and community facility is deemed
acceptable and in accordance with relevant policy. This is predominantly on the basis that a
significant and diverse range of comparable uses and community facilities exist within the local area.
Consequently there would be no significant detriment to the community as a result of loss of the pub.
The proposed use of the existing building for residential accommodation accords with policy
objectives to make more efficient use of land including existing buildings at sustainable and
accessible locations. The proposed shared multiple occupancy accommodation is deemed acceptable
at this particular location on the basis that a harmful concentration of such accommodation would not
be created either within the immediate or wider area. The retention of a commercial unit at the site
would meet requirements within the primary shopping area. Overall, the principle of the proposed
development is found to comply with policy objectives and is deemed acceptable subject to detailed
consideration of other planning matters.
NEIGHBOURING AMENITY & RESIDENTIAL MANAGEMENT
Section 12 (Achieving well-designed places), paragraph 127 of the NPPF outlines that planning
policies and decisions should ensure that developments create places with a high standard of amenity
for existing and future users.
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Core Strategy outlines that all new development within
Bristol will be expected to strive to achieve high standards of urban design. With regards to amenity it
is outlined, that new development is expected to safeguard the amenity of existing development.
Policy DM2 (Residential Sub-divisions, Shared and Specialist Housing) of the SADMP requires that
where the conversion of existing dwellings is proposed for use as houses in multiple occupation,
development will not be permitted where the development would harm the residential amenity or
character of the locality as a result of levels of activity that cause excessive noise and disturbance to
residents.
Policy DM30 (Alterations to Existing Buildings) of the SADMP states extensions and alterations to
existing buildings will be expected to safeguard the amenity of the host premises and neighbouring
occupiers.

Page 48

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

The emerging HMOs SPD (2020) recognises that high numbers of multiple occupancy properties
have the potential to cause harm to residential amenity. This is as a result of noise and disturbance
resulting from intensification of the residential use and/or the potential lifestyle of occupants of such
accommodation.
The application proposes change of use of the pub to create an 8 bedroom house in multiple
occupation and a ground floor commercial unit. Both of these uses are generally found likely to be
less intensive with regards to noise and activity than the established use of the site as a pub.
Nevertheless, it is recognised that large shared dwellings as well as commercial uses, particularly a
café or restaurant (use class A3) may create some noise and disturbance.
The neighbouring sites to the north on Whiteladies Road (no. 173) and to the east on Lower Redland
Road (no. 3) both include flats.
With regards to the proposed extension, this would be located at ground floor level. Adjacent buildings
are all in commercial use at ground level and consequently the proposed rear extension would not
result in loss of light or overshadowing harmful to residential amenity. No additional windows are
proposed within the building and therefore privacy at adjacent sites would remain at current levels.
In terms of the proposed shared multiple occupancy residential use, it is recognised that this is more
intensive than a single family dwelling and holds a greater degree of potential for generating noise
and disturbance. This is based upon the higher occupancy level and increased domestic activity. The
accommodation is however fundamentally a residential use and consequently should not be
significantly different from or out of character with adjacent sites. Concerns are often raised in relation
to the potential for this form of accommodation being occupied by students and associated with
disruptive activity at anti-social hours. The property itself would not necessarily be occupied solely by
students in this case. The LPA has no control over who would eventually occupy the accommodation.
The Pollution Control team have been consulted on the application and considered the proposals. No
objections have been raised subject to conditions relating to provision of acoustic enhancements to
the building. These would be both from the perspective of providing an acceptable environment for
occupiers relating to the commercial uses but also to protect adjacent dwellings. It is recognised that
in this case, additional bathrooms are proposed against party walls and as such functions such a toilet
flushes/showers have the potential for intensive noise disturbance from the existing situation.
Therefore details of a scheme of noise insulation have been requested in this location.
In terms of potential for noise and disruptive activity at anti-social hours the use itself (8 bedroom
shared dwelling) is not found to generate undue risk of this. If such scenarios do however arise and
become a regular issue, this can be reported to the Pollution Control team who will investigate further.
The property will also require a Mandatory HMO License. If granted, this will include conditions which
require the landlord "must take all reasonable steps to deal with anti-social behaviour perpetrated by
occupiers and/or visitors to the property". They also "must ensure that the property is inspected on a
regular basis to assess if there is evidence of anti-social behaviour; this should be at least quarterly,
but more frequently if anti-social behaviour has been established". If there are regular issues with the
site, the terms of the license may be reviewed or alternatively a renewed license may not be granted.
Consequently, there are courses available to manage the situation if disruptive noise does occur
separate to the planning system however the proposed use itself is not found to cause undue risk of
harmful noise and disturbance. The refusal of planning permission on this ground would therefore be
unwarranted.
With regards to the proposed commercial use, permission is sought for retail (use class A1), financial
and professional services (use class A2) and café/restaurant (use class A3). Of these uses, retail and
financial and professional services would not generally be associated with significant noise and
disturbance. This is particularly when considered in comparison to established use of the site as a

Page 49

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

pub. With regard to café and restaurant use, this may generate a higher degree of noise and activity
with regards to kitchen activity, ventilation and extraction. Opening hours of 08:00 to 22:00 Monday to
Friday are proposed, 08:00 to 23:00 on Saturday and 09:00 to 22:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
These opening hours would be secured by condition in the event of permission being granted.
Conditions have also been recommended by Pollution Control relating to internal noise insulation (as
mentioned above), submission of details of any proposed extraction equipment, a maximum noise
level as measured at adjacent residential premises for any plant or equipment on site, limited hours
for use of waste and recycling facilities and also deliveries. Subject to these conditions, the proposed
commercial use of the site will not cause undue harm to living conditions and amenity at adjacent
residential properties. The development accords with policy objectives in this regard and is deemed
acceptable.
STANDARD OF ACCOMODATION
Policy BCS18 (Housing Type) of the Core Strategy outlines that residential developments should
provide sufficient space for everyday activities and to enable flexibility and adaptability by meeting
appropriate space standards.
The supporting text of the policy states that 'Building to suitable space standards will ensure new
homes provide sufficient space for everyday activities. Homes can also be used more flexibly and
adapted more easily by their occupants to changing life circumstances'.
Policy BCS15 (Sustainable Design and Construction) of the Core Strategy sets out broad criteria to be
considered in the design and construction of new development. A key issue that should be addressed
by development includes:
'Flexibility and adaptability, allowing future modification of use or layout, facilitating future
refurbishment and retrofitting'
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Core Strategy sets out criteria for the assessment of
design quality in new development and sets standards against the established national assessment
methodology 'Building for Life'. Development will be expected to:
'Safeguard the amenity of existing development and create a high-quality environment for future
occupiers.' And;
'Create buildings and spaces that are adaptable to changing social, technological, economic and
environmental conditions.'
Policy DM29 (Design of New Buildings) of the SADMP states the design of new buildings should be of
high quality. To achieve this, new buildings are expected to ensure that existing and proposed
development achieves appropriate levels of privacy, outlook and daylight. New residential
development should provide dual aspect where possible, particularly where one of the aspects is
north-facing.
The emerging HMOs SPD (2020) outlines that to meet the policy expectation (Policy BCS18) for
HMOs development should have regard to the minimum room size standards applied by the Council
to licensable HMO properties.
The proposed shared occupancy flats would require a Mandatory License under the Housing Act
2004. The Local Authority has adopted amenity standards which apply to HMO's under this separate
legislative framework. Whilst it is recognised that this is non-planning legislation and therefore not a
material consideration in planning decision making, these standards also provide an indication of the
standard of accommodation expected within shared occupancy housing locally. Recognisably there is
little value in gaining planning permission for a property which would then fail to obtain the required

Page 50

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

license. The Bristol HMO Licensing Amenity Standards outline that single occupancy bedrooms
should provide minimum internal area of at least 6.5m2 and where communal facilities are shared by
8 occupants, communal area totalling a minimum of 24m2 should be provided and the kitchen should
be 10m2.
All of the proposed bedrooms within the house would measure over 6.5m2 in area. The communal
area would be located at ground floor level. The living room and kitchen would include area totalling
25m2 thus exceeding the required level. The kitchen would measure 8.6m2. This is marginally below
the 10m2 however this is not found to significantly prejudice the living environment for residents given
the overall communal area meets requirements. The Licensing team were consulted in relation to this
shortfall and confirmed there was a degree of flexibility in the standards and this was likely to be
acceptable. All rooms would include good sized windows which would offer natural light, outlook and
ventilation. The building is dual aspect. No outdoor amenity area is available however this is not
unusual in this location. The site is in close proximity of The Downs which would offer residents public
outdoor area which to an extent would compensate. Details of sound insulation would be sought via
condition as discussed above in order to ensure residents are not disturbed by commercial activity at
the site. Overall, it is concluded that the building would offer sufficient space, light, outlook and
ventilation for residents to attain a good standard of amenity.
TRANSPORT & HIGHWAYS
Section 9 (Promoting Sustainable Transport) of the NPPF outlines that significant development should
be focused on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and
offering a genuine choice of transport modes. This can help to reduce congestion and emissions, and
improve air quality and public health. However, opportunities to maximise sustainable transport
solutions will vary between urban and rural areas, and this should be taken into account in both planmaking and decision-making.
In relation to sustainable transport, the NPPF states that development should:
a)

give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and with
neighbouring areas; and second - so far as possible - to facilitating access to high quality
public transport, with layouts that maximise the catchment area for bus or other public
transport services, and appropriate facilities that encourage public transport use;

b)

address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of
transport;

c)

create places that are safe, secure and attractive - which minimise the scope for conflicts
between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street clutter, and respond to
local character and design standards;

d)

allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and emergency vehicles; and

e)

be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe,
accessible and convenient locations.

Policy BCS10 (Transport & Access Improvements) of the Core Strategy states that development
proposals should be located where sustainable travel patterns can be achieved, with more intensive,
higher density mixed use development at accessible centres and along or close to main public
transport routes. Proposals should minimise the need to travel, especially by private car, and
maximise opportunities for the use of walking, cycling and public transport.
Developments should be designed and located to ensure the provision of safe streets and reduce as
far as possible the negative impacts of vehicles such as excessive volumes, fumes and noise.

Page 51

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

Proposals should create places and streets where traffic and other activities are integrated and where
buildings, spaces and the needs of people shape the area.
The following hierarchy for transport user priorities is set out:
a) The pedestrian;
b) The cyclist;
c) Public transport;
d) Access for commercial vehicles;
e) Short stay visitors by car;
f) The private car.
Policy DM23 (Transport Development Management) of the SADMP outlines that new development
should not give rise to unacceptable traffic conditions and will be expected to provide safe access to
the highway network. The policy also outlines that new development should be accessible by
sustainable transport methods such as walking, cycling and public transport.
Appendix 2 of the SADMP sets policy requirements for car and cycle parking provision. Cycle parking
standards are minimum requirements and car parking standards a maximum permissible level. 4 or
more bedroom dwellings require 3 cycle spaces per dwelling. A maximum level of 1.5 car parking
spaces per three or more bedroom dwelling is permissible.
As noted above in the principle of development, the site is found to represent a sustainable location
for residential development as well as an appropriate location for the commercial uses proposed. This
is based upon the location within a town centre and directly on a main public transport route. By virtue
of location, the site benefits from good access to public transport services which would offer good
means of low carbon transportation and access to other parts of the city without the requirement for
private car use. The site represents a sustainable and policy compliant location for residential
accommodation.
It is noted that no car parking is proposed in this instance. Given the accessibility of the location (as
discussed above), no objection is held to this. In order to prevent increased parking pressure on
surrounding streets, Transport Development Management have recommended that the development
should be treated as car free. Future occupiers will be ineligible for parking permits in the adjacent
Cotham North & Clifton East Residents Parking Schemes. This will ensure there is no significant
increase in demand for car parking on local streets following development.
Cycle parking for a total of x6 bikes is proposed on site. This exceeds the minimum policy requirement
which is welcomed given the type accommodation proposed. The cycle parking would be located in
the yard to the rear of the site. Whilst this is not the most accessible location, given the existing layout
and historic significance of the building, it is accepted that there is no alternative in this instance.
Cycle parking will be secured by condition in the event of permission being granted.
Bin and recycling storage is also proposed in the rear yard area. Similar to cycle parking, this is not
ideal in terms of accessibility however it is accepted that there is little alternative in this instance. The
proposed storage areas are of sufficient scale to accommodate the required level of bins and
recycling boxes. A condition would be applied ensuring that bins are returned to the storage area on
collection day. Subject to this measure, commercial and residential waste will be dealt with
acceptably.
The development is not found to cause any access, transport or highways issues and consequently is
deemed in accordance with policy and acceptable in this regard.
APPEARANCE, CHRACTER & HERITAGE ASSETS

Page 52

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

The Authority is required (under Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of the conservation area as well as the setting and significance of Listed
buildings or structures. The case of R (Forge Field Society) v Sevenoaks DC [2014] EWHC 1895
(Admin) ("Forge Field") has made it clear where there is harm to a listed building or a conservation
area the decision maker ''must give that harm considerable importance and weight".
Section 12 (Achieving well-designed places) of the NPPF outlines that "The creation of high quality
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve.
Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and
work and helps make development acceptable to communities". Planning policies and decisions
should aim to ensure that developments:
a)

will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over
the lifetime of the development;

b)

are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping;

c)

are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change
(such as increased densities);

d)

establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces,
building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work
and visit;

e)

optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix
of development (including green and other public space) and support local facilities and
transport networks; and

f)

create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being,
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder,
and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and
resilience.

Section 12 of the NPPF also states that "Permission should be refused for development of poor
design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area
and the way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides in plans or
supplementary planning documents".
Section 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) of the NPPF outlines that heritage
assets "are an irreplaceable resource, and should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their
significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and
future generations.
Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states that "In determining applications, local planning authorities should
require an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any
contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets'
importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on their
significance. As a minimum the relevant historic environment record should have been consulted and
the heritage assets assessed using appropriate expertise where necessary".
Paragraph 195 of the NPPF states that "Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm
to (or total loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse

Page 53

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is necessary to achieve
substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the following apply:
a)

the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

b)

no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through appropriate
marketing that will enable its conservation; and

c)

conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public ownership is
demonstrably not possible; and

d)

the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.

Paragraph 196 of the NPPF states that "Where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable
use".
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Core Strategy advocates that new development should
deliver high quality urban design that contributes positively to an area's character and identity, whilst
safeguarding the amenity of existing development.
Policy BCS22 (Conservation and the Historic Environment) of the Core Strategy states that new
development will safeguard or enhance heritage assets and the character and setting of areas of
acknowledged importance including:
o
o
o
o
o

Scheduled ancient monuments;
Historic buildings both nationally and locally listed;
Historic parks and gardens both nationally and locally listed;
Conservation areas;
Archaeological remains

Policy DM26 (Local Character & Distinctiveness) of the Site Allocations & Development Management
Policies (SADMP) Local Plan outlines that all development is expected to contribute positively to an
area's character and identity. The policy builds on policy BCS21 (above) by stipulating the
characteristics which development should seek to respond to. General principles include:
i.

Responding appropriately to and incorporating existing land forms, green infrastructure assets
and historic assets and features; and

ii.

Respecting, building upon or restoring the local pattern and grain of development, including
the historical development of the area; and

iii.

Responding appropriately to local patterns of movement and the scale, character and function
of streets and public spaces; and

iv.

Retaining, enhancing and creating important views into, out of and through the site; and

v.

Making appropriate use of landmarks and focal features, and preserving or enhancing the
setting of existing landmarks and focal features; and

vi.

Responding appropriately to the height, scale, massing, shape, form and proportion of existing
buildings, building lines and set-backs from the street, skylines and roofscapes; and

vii.

Reflecting locally characteristic architectural styles, rhythms, patterns, features and themes

Page 54

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

taking account of their scale and proportion; and
viii.

Reflecting the predominant materials, colours, textures, landscape treatments and boundary
treatments in the area.

The policy states that "development will not be permitted where it would be harmful to local character
and distinctiveness or where it would fail to take the opportunities available to improve the character
and quality of the area and the way it functions."
Policy DM30 (Alterations to Existing Buildings) of the SADMP states that extensions and alterations to
existing buildings will be expected to:
i.

Respect the siting, scale, form, proportions, materials, detail s and the overall design and
character of the host building, its curtilage and the broader street scene; and

ii.

Retain and/or reinstate traditional or distinctive architectural features and fabric; and

iii.

Safeguard the amenity of the host premises and neighbouring occupiers; and

iv.

Leave sufficient usable external private space for the occupiers of the building.

Extensions should be physically and visually subservient to the host building, including its roof form,
and not dominate it by virtue of their siting and scale.
Policy DM31 (Heritage Assets) of the SADMP outlines that where development has an impact upon a
heritage asset, it will be expected to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance the asset or its
setting.
The site is located within the Whiteladies Road Conservation Area. The building and those adjacent
are statutorily listed for historic significance. These represent designated heritage assets.
The Whiteladies Road Conservation Area Enhancement Statement provides further context with
regard to the historic significance of the area which has warranted conservation status. The document
outlines "The layout of the area is a series of irregular street grids, based on Whiteladies Road, a
principal shopping street and route to the north out of the city centre. They are three district areas. In
the main the buildings run parallel to the streets, and for the most part are regularly spaced in relation
to each other. The residential dwellings are generally set back behind medium-sized or generously
proportioned individual front gardens. This area falls either side of Whiteladies Road". The
Enhancement Statement raises concerns in relation to the impacts of additional office development at
the expense of shopping and residential use. This is particularly with regards to fragmentation of the
shopping frontages, eroding the character both of the buildings themselves and their surroundings,
generating more pressure on local car parking in the area and downgrading the existing environment.
The listing entry describes the historic significance for which the building was listed:
Includes: Nos.2 AND 3 LOWER REDLAND ROAD Clifton. Terrace of 12 houses, now shops. 1840.
Limestone ashlar, party wall stacks, roof not visible. Double-depth plan. Each of 3 storeys; 1-window
range. A regular terrace stepping down the hill has a 4-storey central pair; it extends round the righthand corner with a C19 public house front, to a C19 shop front with green glazed brick sides and stall
front at the right-hand end, and C20 shop fronts to the remainder. Articulated by pilasters to a cornice
and parapet, the middle pair have an attic storey with a raised central parapet. Architraves and
cornices to first-floor windows, recessed surrounds to second floor and attic, with plate-glass sashes.
Doorway to the public house has panelled jambs, a cornice and overlight to a panelled door. The end
shop in Lower Redland Road is set back slightly. INTERIOR not inspected.

Page 55

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

From a heritage perspective, it is recognised there is a preference to retain a pub at the site. However
loss of the pub has been found to accord with other policy requirements. A commercial unit will be
retained as well as associated commercial features such as shopfront and signage. Loss of the
established use is found to result in a low degree of harm to the significance of the listed building.
The proposals include relatively minor external alterations. These include removal of an existing nonoriginal rear extension and replacement with a revised equivalent, insertion of a new residential
entrance within the Lower Redland Road elevation, removal of existing exterior lighting and
refurbishment of windows. Alterations are also proposed to internal layout and built fabric to
accommodate the proposed uses. The proposed residential entrance would reinstate the traditional
entrance to 1 Lower Redland Road which was previously a separate domestic property. As such,
there is a degree of benefit associated with these works in terms of returning the building to its
traditional layout. The proposed extension would be smaller scale than the existing. Removal of
exterior lighting and refurbishment of original windows would also be associated with a degree of
benefit. The Conservation Officer has reviewed the proposals are raised no concerns with regards to
the scope of proposed works. This is subject to securing construction details and methodology
relating to windows, stonework, fire and acoustic enhancements, external vents and ducts as well as
demolition proposals.
A low degree of harm is associated with loss of the pub at the site. However the proposals will retain
important commercial features and characteristics of the historic building. The proposals are also
associated with a degree of public benefit in terms of ensuring the building is used efficiently as well
as historically appropriate external alterations. In light of this, the development is found to result in
public benefit which would outweigh a low degree of harm identified. The application is deemed in
accordance with policy and acceptable in this regard.
SUSTAINABILITY & CLIMATE CHANGE
Section 14 of the NPPF states "The planning system should support the transition to a low carbon
future in a changing climate, taking full account of flood risk and coastal change. It should help to:
shape places in ways that contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas emissions, minimise
vulnerability and improve resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, including the
conversion of existing buildings; and support renewable and low carbon energy and associated
infrastructure".
Paragraph 150 of the NPPF outlines that "new development should be planned for in ways that: can
help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, orientation and design".
Core Strategy Policy BCS13 states that "Development should contribute to both mitigating and
adapting to climate change, and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. Development
should mitigate climate change through measures including:
o

High standards of energy efficiency including optimal levels of thermal insulation, passive
ventilation and cooling, passive solar design, and the efficient use of natural resources in new
buildings.

o

The use of decentralised, renewable and low-carbon energy supply systems.

o

Patterns of development which encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transport
instead of journeys by private car.

Development should adapt to climate change through measures including:
o

Site layouts and approaches to design and construction which provide resilience to climate
change.

Page 56

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

o

Measures to conserve water supplies and minimise the risk and impact of flooding.

o

The use of green infrastructure to minimise and mitigate the heating of the urban environment.

o

Avoiding responses to climate impacts which lead to increases in energy use and carbon
dioxide emissions.

These measures should be integrated into the design of new development. New development should
demonstrate through Sustainability Statements how it would contribute to mitigating and adapting to
climate change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions by means of the above
measures.
Core Strategy Policy BCS14 provides further objectives for how development will be expected to
reduce carbon emissions through use of sustainable energy sources. It is outlined that development
should include measures to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from energy use in accordance with the
energy hierarchy. Development is also required to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from residual
energy use by way of onsite renewable energy generation in buildings by at least 20%. New
development will be expected to demonstrate that the heating and cooling systems have been
selected following the heat hierarchy.
Further guidance on Core Strategy policy requirements and the preparation of Sustainability and
Energy Statements is available within the Climate Change and Sustainability Practice Note (2012).
The applicant has supplied a sustainability statement in support of the proposed development. It is
recognised that the improvements which can be made to the energy efficiency of the building through
improved fabric and air tightness are limited as a result of the historic significance of the building and
listed status. With regards to climate change, it is noted that the development will be car free and
include acceptable cycle parking facilities. The ventilation strategy for the building is natural ventilation
via openable windows and cross ventilation, thus low energy. The SBEM report indicates there is no
overheating risk in summer.CO2 emissions in the dwelling will be below the minimum requirements of
the Building Regulations. All thermal elements and Controlled Elements will exceed the minimum
Building Regulation standards. The existing elements will remain unchanged from their original,
except for improvement of roof insulation. Lighting will be low energy and infrared controlled. The
aforementioned improvements would deliver a 2.8% reduction in carbon emissions in comparison to
residual emissions. The supplied energy table also indicates a further 5.2% reduction in carbon
emissions (beyond the improved Part L level) can be achieved via on site renewable energy
generation, specifically via installation of photovoltaic panels. These are proposed for installation to
the south facing pitched roof face. It is recognised that this will not achieve a 20% reduction on
improved residual emissions. In this instance given the listed status of the building, this is deemed
acceptable. Whilst not fully policy compliant, the development would still make a positive contribution
to reducing carbon emissions through use of sustainable energy sources. This is acceptable in this
instance.
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
Some new developments granted planning permission will be liable to pay Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) to Bristol City Council.
CIL is payable where development comprises 100m2 or more of new build floorspace or results in the
creation of one or more dwellings.
The proposed development is understood not to qualify to pay CIL in this instance.
CONCLUSION

Page 57

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

The proposed loss of the existing use of the site as a pub is deemed to accord with policy in this
instance on the basis that there is sufficient alternative pub provision in the local area. Consequently,
this would not result in significant detriment to the local community. The proposed uses retaining a
commercial unit as well as creating a large shared house in multiple occupation are supported by
policy at this location. The proposals would not result in any undue detriment to neighbouring amenity,
highways issues or heritage impact and also create an acceptable living environment for future
occupiers. The development is therefore found to be in accordance with relevant national and local
planning policy. No material considerations have been identified by Officers which would warrant the
refusal of planning permission. It is therefore the recommendation of Officers that permission is
granted subject to conditions herein.

RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to condition(s)

Conditions list:
Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2.

Further details: Noise insulation
Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme of noise insulation measures for the
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme of noise insulation measures shall include details of:
o
o
o

Sound insulation between the ground floor A1, A2 or A3 use and the residential parts
of the development.
The glazing and ventilation specification for all bedrooms
Any bathrooms on party walls with adjoining residential properties

The scheme of noise insulation measures shall be prepared by a suitably qualified acoustic
consultant/engineer and shall take into account the provisions of BS 8233: 2014 " Guidance on
sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings. The approved scheme shall be
implemented in full prior to the commencement of either use and be permanently maintained
thereafter.
Reason: To preserve an acceptable standard of amenity for residents both at the site and at
adjacent sites in accordance with Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy as well as Policies DM30
and DM35 of the SADMP.
3.

Further details: Windows and doors

Page 58

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

Prior to the commencement of development, 1:5 section details and 1:10 elevation details of
all proposed new windows and exterior doors showing fabric connections at head, jambs,
reveals, thresholds and materials (including manufacturers specifications and samples if
required) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the special interest of the Listed Building.
4.

Further details: Residential entrance stone surround
Prior to the commencement of development, a 1:10 elevation and section detail of the
proposed residential entrance within the Lower Redland Road elevation demonstrating head,
cill, reveal, threshold and materials (including manufacturers specifications and samples if
required) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the special interest of the Listed Building.

5.

Further details: Typical fire, thermal and acoustic details
Prior to the commencement of development, 1:5 sections demonstrating typical fire, thermal
and acoustic enhancements between internal floors and walls shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the special interest of the Listed Building.

6.

Further details: External vents and ducts
Prior to the commencement of development, 1:5 sections and elevations demonstrating any
proposed external vents and/or ducts proposed for installation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the special interest of the Listed Building.

7.

Further details: Demolition method statement
Prior to the commencement of development, a Demolition and Construction Method Statement
relating to proposed works to install the new residential entrance within the Lower Redland
Road elevation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development including demolition shall be completed in full accordance with the approved
statement.
Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the special interest of the Listed Building.

8.

Further details: PV Panels
Prior to the commencement of the relevant element of the development, details (including the
exact location (to include the optimisation of positioning), dimensions, design/ technical
specification and method of fixing) relating to the PV panels shall be submitted to and agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved equipment shall be installed and
operational prior to the first occupation of the use which they serve and retained as operational
thereafter in perpetuity.

Page 59

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.
Pre occupation condition(s)
9.

Further details: Commercial extraction/ventilation system
Prior to first use of the site for cafe or restaurant use (use class A3) full details of proposed
equipment for the extraction and dispersal of cooking smells/fumes shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This must include details of method of
construction, odour control measures, noise levels, appearance, maintenance and
management. The approved scheme shall be installed and fully operational prior to
commencement of any cafe or restaurant use (use class A3) and maintained for the full
duration of this use unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the amenity of surrounding residential premises.

10.

New works to match - Listed Building
All new external and internal works and finishes, and any works of making good, shall match
the existing original fabric in respect of using materials of a matching form, composition and
consistency, detailed execution and finished appearance, except where indicated otherwise on
the drawings hereby approved.
Reason: In order that the special architectural and historic interest of this Listed Building is
safeguarded.

11.

Internal features
All existing internal decoration features, including plaster work, ironwork, fireplaces, doors,
windows, staircases, staircase balustrade and other woodwork, shall remain undisturbed in
their existing position, and shall be fully protected during the course of works on site unless
expressly specified in the approved drawings.
Reason: In order that the special architectural and historic interest of this Listed Building is
safeguarded.

12.

Partitions - Listed Building
All new partitions shall be scribed around the existing ornamental plaster mouldings.
Reason: To ensure that the character, appearance and integrity of the building is not
prejudiced, thereby preserving its special architectural or historic interest.

13.

Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities – Shown on Approved
Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the refuse
store and area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the approved
plans have been completed in accordance with the approved plans.
Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be
stored within this dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within
the building(s) that form part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be

Page 60

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

stored or placed for collection on the adopted highway (including the footway), except on the
day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises; protect the general
environment; prevent any obstruction to pedestrian movement and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.
14.

Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle
parking provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept
free of obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.

Post occupation management
15.

Restriction of noise from plant and equipment
The rating level of any noise generated by plant & equipment as part of the development shall
be at least 5 dB below the background level as determined by BS4142: 2014 Methods for
rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally.

16.

Hours open to customers Monday - Sunday
No customers shall remain on the commercial premises outside the hours of: 08:00 to 22:00
Monday to Friday; 08:00 to 23:00 Saturdays; and 09:00 to 22:00 on Sundays.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

17.

Use of Refuse and recycling facilities
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables and the tipping of empty bottles
into external receptacles shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00 Monday to Saturday
and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby occupiers

18.

Hours of deliveries
Activities relating to deliveries to the commercial uses hereby approved shall only take place
between 08.00 and 20.00 Monday to Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby occupiers

19.

Sustainability and energy efficiency measures
The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures,
renewable energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into
the design and construction of the development in full accordance with the energy and
sustainability statement (Sustainability and Energy Statement by Energy Saving Experts Ltd)

Page 61

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

prior to first occupation. A total 2.8% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions beyond Part L
2013 Building Regulations in line with the energy hierarchy shall be achieved through
improved building fabric, and a 5.2% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions below residual
emissions through renewable technologies (solar panels) shall be achieved.
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and
can adapt to a changing climate in accordance with Policies BCS13 (Climate Change), BCS14
(Sustainable Energy), BCS15 (Sustainable Design and Construction) and DM29 (Design of
New Buildings).
20.

Restriction of use of roof
The roof area of the extension hereby permitted shall not be used as a balcony, roof garden or
similar amenity area without the grant of further specific planning permission from the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises.

List of approved plans
21.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
1674(L)00 Site location plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)01 Existing block plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)02 Existing basement plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)03 Existing ground floor plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)04 Existing first floor plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)05 Existing second floor plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)06 Existing roof plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)21 (A) Proposed basement plan, received 20 November 2019
1674(L)22 (E) Proposed ground floor plan, received 20 November 2019
1674(L)23 (F) Proposed first floor plan, received 20 November 2019
1674(L)24 (B) Proposed second floor plan, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)25 (B) Proposed roof plan, received 20 November 2019
1674(L)07 Existing West elevation, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)08 Existing South elevation, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)09 Existing East and North elevations, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)26 Proposed West elevation, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)27 (A) Proposed South elevation, received 30 September 2019
1674(L)28 (B) Proposed East and North elevations, received 20 November 2019
Heritage audit, received 30 September 2019
Heritage statement, received 30 September 2019
Marketing response letter, received 30 September 2019
Planning supporting statement, received 30 September 2019
Premises management plan, received 30 September 2019
Sustainability statement and energy assessment, received 30 September 2019
Design and access statement, received 30 September 2019
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Page 62

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/04744/F : Blackboy Inn 171 Whiteladies Road Bristol BS8 2RY

Item no. 2

Advices
1

Construction site noise: Due to the proximity of existing noise sensitive development and
the potential for disturbance arising from contractors' operations, the developers' attention
is drawn to Section 60 and 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974, to BS 5528: Parts 1 and
2:
2009 Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites code of practice for
basic information and procedures for noise and vibration control" and the code of practice
adopted
by Bristol City Council with regard to "Construction Noise Control". Information in this
respect can be obtained from Pollution Control, City Hall, Bristol City Council, PO Box 3176,
Bristol
BS3 9FS.

2

Sound insulation/acoustic reports
The recommended design criteria for dwellings are as follows:
* Daytime (07.00 - 23.00) 35 dB LAeq 16 hours in all rooms & 50 dB in outdoor living areas.
* Nightime (23.00 - 07.00) 30 dB LAeq 8 hours & LAmax less than 45 dB in bedrooms.
Where residential properties are likely to be affected by amplified music from
neighbouring pubs or clubs, the recommended design criteria is as follows:
* Noise Rating Curve NR20 at all times in any habitable rooms.

3

Application for advertisement consent needed: You are reminded of the need to obtain
separate consent under the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
Regulations 1992 for any advertisements requiring express consent which you may wish
to display on these premises.

4

Noise - plant & equipment
Anti vibration mounts should be used to isolate plant from fixed structures and a flexible
connector used to connect the flue to the fan if there is a potential to transmit vibration to
any noise sensitive property. Any systems will also need regular maintenance so as to
reduce mechanical noise.

5

Restriction of Parking Permits - Existing Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme
You are advised that the Local Planning Authority has recommended to the Highways
Authority which administers the existing Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking
Scheme of which the development forms part that the development shall be treated as car
free / low- car and the occupiers are ineligible for resident parking permits as well as
visitors parking permits if in a Residents Parking Scheme.

commdelgranted
V1.0211

Page 63
3-Feb-20

Page 27 of 27

Supporting Documents
2.

Blackboy Inn, 171 Whiteladies Road
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Councillor Referral Form – Cllr Stevens
Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Proposed First Floor Plan
Proposed Second Floor Plan
Proposed Lower Redland Road Elevation
Proposed Whiteladies Road Elevation
Proposed Rear Courtyard Elevation
Site Photos

Page 64

Development Services
Councillor Referral Form
Reporting of a planning application to a
Development Control Committee
Before submitting, please discuss the application with the identified case officer, as
this may prevent the need for the referral, if the officer recommendation agrees with
the ward member view.

(Please email this form to development.management@bristol.gov.uk)
Councillor name: Clive Stevens
Councillor ward:

Clifton Down

Date: 12 Nov 2019
Application ref. no:

19/04744/F

Application address:

Blackboy Inn, 171 Whiteladies Road

I would like this planning application to be considered by an Area
Development Control Committee if it is proposed to be recommended for
approval / refusal
Reasons for referral (must be on planning grounds):
The proposed premises management plan (as a condition) has requirements that are
unenforceable by Planning Enforcement. It also doesn’t include other factors which
could be enforceable for example maximum number of people on the premises.
Whilst it could well be a good idea to have premises enforcement plans for
properties operating as Houses of Multiple Occupation the requirements must be
enforceable via Planning. I have not been persuaded of this. For example “not to
cause a noise that can be heard outside the residence between 11pm and 7am”.
Whilst this is a good idea, what will happen if noise is audible at say 1am? Who do
neighbours complain to? (the University, Chatford Properties, the police or noise
enforcement)? How will it be monitored and if there are regular breaches what will
happen to the owner, Chatford? (Chatford say they will evict the tenant but if the
tenants are only staying there for a year then they will leave anyway). The
enforcement must require remedies on Chatford Properties.
Councillor referral form
22/10/13

Page 65

Responsibility is not accepted for
errors made by others scaling
from this drawing. All construction
information should be taken from
figured dimensions only.

N

DEMOLITIONS
ADDITIONS

BIKE
STORE

0

2m
@1:50

KITCHEN

Page 66

RECYCLING
& FOOD
WASTE

Bedrooms 1&2 relocated,
extension reduced, bike storage
increased. Living room / Kitchen
relocated. Bike store added in
commercial unit.

19.11.19

-

ISSUED FOR PLANNING

27.08.19

D

Patio doors in extension
replaced by window, staircase
amended

22.08.19

C

Annotations added

02.08.19

B

Commercial WC removed,
bathroom and bedrooms resized

23.07.19

A

Extension amended and
bedrooms 1&2 added

19.07.19

REV

Note

Date
105 WEST ARCHITECTS Ltd

LIVING
ROOM

COMMERCIAL
UNIT

BIKE
ST.

Ground Floor

E

107 Lower Redland Road
Redland
Bristol BS6 6SW
T 0117 3737596
E info@105west.co.uk

Project

The Blackboy Inn

Drawing
Title

Proposed Ground Floor
Plan

Drawing
No.

1674(L)22

Scale @A3

drawn by

Date

Rev

1:50

EN

12.07.19

E

Responsibility is not accepted for
errors made by others scaling
from this drawing. All construction
information should be taken from
figured dimensions only.

N

DEMOLITIONS
ADDITIONS
0

Page 67

BEDROOM 1

BATHROOM

2m
@1:50

F

Extension reduced in size,
kitchen / living room relocated
on ground floor.

19.11.19

E

ISSUED FOR PLANNING
Staircase amended

27.08.19
22.08.19

D

Annotations added.

02.08.19

C

Kitchen layout amended.

23.07.19

B

Kitchen and lounge relocated.

22.07.19

A

Bedrooms 1&2 replaced by
kitchen and lounge.
Note

19.07.19

REV

Date

105 WEST ARCHITECTS Ltd
107 Lower Redland Road
Redland
Bristol BS6 6SW
T 0117 3737596
E info@105west.co.uk

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3
BEDROOM 4

First Floor

Project

The Blackboy Inn

Drawing
Title

Proposed First Floor
Plan

Drawing
No.

1674(L)23

Scale @A3

drawn by

Date

Rev

1:50

EN

12.07.19

F

Responsibility is not accepted for
errors made by others scaling
from this drawing. All construction
information should be taken from
figured dimensions only.

DEMOLITIONS
ADDITIONS
N

BATHROOM
BEDROOM 7

Page 68

UTILITY

BEDROOM 6

BATHROOM

B

Annotations added.

A

Utility room added.

23.07.19

REV

Note

Date

02.08.19

105 WEST ARCHITECTS Ltd
107 Lower Redland Road
Redland
Bristol BS6 6SW

BEDROOM 5
BEDROOM 8

T 0117 3737596
E info@105west.co.uk

Second Floor

0

2m
@1:50

Project

The Blackboy Inn

Drawing
Title

Proposed Second Floor
Plan

Drawing
No.

1674(L)24

Scale @A3

drawn by

Date

Rev

1:50

EN

12.07.19

B

Responsibility is not accepted for
errors made by others scaling
from this drawing. All construction
information should be taken from
figured dimensions only.

DEMOLITIONS
ADDITIONS

REPAIR OF SASHES:
1.

Page 69

REMOVING ALL EXISTING LAYERS OF
PAINT
2. REMOVE EXISTING GLASS AND GLAZING
PUTTY
3. REMOVING ANY ROTTEN SECTIONS OF
TIMBER AND REPLACING WITH NEW
TREATED TIMBER OR TWO PART FILLER
4. TREAT THE SASH WITH THREE FLOOD
COATS OF CUPRINOL 5 STAR WOOD
PRESERVATIVE
5. APPLY WOOD HARDENER AS REQUIRED
6. APPLY KNOTTING TO ANY EXPOSED
KNOTS
7. APPLY ONE COAT OF DULUX WEATHER
SHIELD PRIMER
8. REGLAZE WINDOW WITH LINSEED
BASED PUTTY
9. APPLY ONE COAT OF DULUX WEATHER
SHIELD GLOSS
10. RENOVATED SASHES ARE TO BE
RE-HUNG WITH NEW BRASS PULLEYS
AND CORDS AND BALANCED WITH THE
ORIGINAL WEIGHTS WHERE POSSIBLE.

A

Solar arrays added

22.08.19

REV

Note

Date
105 WEST ARCHITECTS Ltd
107 Lower Redland Road
Redland
Bristol BS6 6SW
T 0117 3737596
E info@105west.co.uk

Project

The Blackboy Inn

Drawing
Title

Proposed South
Elevation

Drawing
No.

1674(L)27

South Elevation
0

4m
@1:100

Scale @A3

drawn by

Date

Rev

1:100

EN

02.08.19

A

Responsibility is not accepted for
errors made by others scaling
from this drawing. All construction
information should be taken from
figured dimensions only.

DEMOLITIONS

REPAIR OF SASHES:
1.

REMOVING ALL EXISTING LAYERS OF
PAINT
2. REMOVE EXISTING GLASS AND GLAZING
PUTTY
3. REMOVING ANY ROTTEN SECTIONS OF
TIMBER AND REPLACING WITH NEW
TREATED TIMBER OR TWO PART FILLER
4. TREAT THE SASH WITH THREE FLOOD
COATS OF CUPRINOL 5 STAR WOOD
PRESERVATIVE
5. APPLY WOOD HARDENER AS REQUIRED
6. APPLY KNOTTING TO ANY EXPOSED
KNOTS
7. APPLY ONE COAT OF DULUX WEATHER
SHIELD PRIMER
8. REGLAZE WINDOW WITH LINSEED
BASED PUTTY
9. APPLY ONE COAT OF DULUX WEATHER
SHIELD GLOSS
10. RENOVATED SASHES ARE TO BE
RE-HUNG WITH NEW BRASS PULLEYS
AND CORDS AND BALANCED WITH THE
ORIGINAL WEIGHTS WHERE POSSIBLE.

ADDITIONS

Page 70

REV

Note

Date
105 WEST ARCHITECTS Ltd
107 Lower Redland Road
Redland
Bristol BS6 6SW
T 0117 3737596
E info@105west.co.uk

Project

The Blackboy Inn

Drawing
Title

Proposed West
Elevation

Drawing
No.

1674(L)26

West Elevation
0

4m
@1:100

Scale @A3

drawn by

Date

Rev

1:100

EN

02.08.19

/

Responsibility is not accepted for
errors made by others scaling
from this drawing. All construction
information should be taken from
figured dimensions only.

REPAIR OF SASHES:
1.

REMOVING ALL EXISTING LAYERS OF
PAINT
2. REMOVE EXISTING GLASS AND GLAZING
PUTTY
3. REMOVING ANY ROTTEN SECTIONS OF
TIMBER AND REPLACING WITH NEW
TREATED TIMBER OR TWO PART FILLER
4. TREAT THE SASH WITH THREE FLOOD
COATS OF CUPRINOL 5 STAR WOOD
PRESERVATIVE
5. APPLY WOOD HARDENER AS REQUIRED
6. APPLY KNOTTING TO ANY EXPOSED
KNOTS
7. APPLY ONE COAT OF DULUX WEATHER
SHIELD PRIMER
8. REGLAZE WINDOW WITH LINSEED
BASED PUTTY
9. APPLY ONE COAT OF DULUX WEATHER
SHIELD GLOSS
10. RENOVATED SASHES ARE TO BE
RE-HUNG WITH NEW BRASS PULLEYS
AND CORDS AND BALANCED WITH THE
ORIGINAL WEIGHTS WHERE POSSIBLE.

DEMOLITIONS
ADDITIONS

Page 71
B

Elevations updated to revised
layout

19.11.19

A

ISSUED FOR PLANNING
Elevation of extension amended
and side elevation of extension
added

27.08.19
22.08.19

REV

Note

Date
105 WEST ARCHITECTS Ltd
107 Lower Redland Road
Redland
Bristol BS6 6SW
T 0117 3737596
E info@105west.co.uk

East Elevation

1:100

North Elevation

1:100

West Elevation of Extension

1:100
0

4m
@1:100

Project

The Blackboy Inn

Drawing
Title

Proposed East & North
Elevations

Drawing
No.

1674(L)28

Scale @A3

drawn by

Date

Rev

As
indicated

EN

02.08.19

B

Page 72

Page 73

Page 74

Page 75

Page 76

Page 77

Page 78

Page 79

Page 80

Page 81

Page 82

Agenda Item 8c
Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
WARD:

Bedminster

SITE ADDRESS:

116 Chessel Street Bristol BS3 3DJ

APPLICATION NO:

19/05576/H

ITEM NO. 3

Full Planning (Householders)

DETERMINATION
14 February 2020
DEADLINE:
Single storey rear infill extension. Rear roof dormer extension.
RECOMMENDATION:
AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

Nse Architects
57 Rookery Road
Bristol
BS4 2DX

APPLICANT:

Ms Helen Kilroy
116 Chessel Street
Bedminster
Bristol
BS3 3DJ

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

03/02/20 10:12

Page 83

Committee report

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/05576/H : 116 Chessel Street Bristol BS3 3DJ

Item no. 3

SUMMARY
This application has been brought to the Development Control (B) Committee as required by the
Planning Officer code of conduct that prevents officers presiding over a colleagues planning
application.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The site is located on Chessel Street in the Bedminster Ward of Bristol. The site comprises of a twostorey mid terrace property which benefits from a two-storey front bay window, two-storey outrigger
and single storey rear extension. The property also benefits from front and rear gardens. The property
is finished in render, brick and stone and the roof is pitched and tiled. Windows and doors are UPVC.
The surrounding area is predominately residential and the street is characterised by terraced
properties with single or two-storey front bay windows. A number of properties in the local area have
rear dormer extensions which vary in size, scale and material and a number of properties have side
infill extension.
The site is not located within a conservation area. There are no Listed Buildings in the immediate
vicinity and there are no TPO protected trees on the site.
PLANNING HISTORY
The site has no relevant planning history.
APPLICATION
The application seeks planning permission for a single-storey rear infill extension and rear roof dormer
extension.
The proposal has been revised following concerns in relation to the eaves height of the rear infill
extension and size and scale of the rear dormer extension. For the purpose of this report, the revised
scheme shall be assessed.
The proposed rear infill extension would measure approximately 6.2m in depth and 1.6m in width. The
proposal would be 2.5m on the eaves and 3.8m at its ridge. The proposal would run flush with the
existing single storey rear extension to create a wrap-around extension. The proposal would feature a
part glass, part ply membrane mono-pitched roof with a hipped end. The proposal would be finished in
render and feature a rear facing fixed glazed screen. The proposal would feature one roof light and
would replace the existing rear facing doors with bi-folding doors. The proposed windows and doors
would be aluminium.
The proposed roof dormer extension would measure approximately 4.5m in width, 2.3m in height and
4.1m in depth. The proposal would extend directly up from the exterior walls of the property and
include an amended valley and gutter. The proposal would feature a Juliet balcony and three roof
lights, two of which would be on the front elevation. The proposal would be finished in render and
feature a ply membrane flat roof. The proposed windows and doors would be aluminium.
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
Neighbouring properties have been notified in relation to the proposed development of the site.
No responses were received.

Page 84

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/05576/H : 116 Chessel Street Bristol BS3 3DJ

Item no. 3

WARD MEMBERS
There were no comments raised by Ward Members.
ASSESSMENT
A)

IS THE DESIGN, LAYOUT AND SCALE ACCEPTABLE?

Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) states that development should be of a high quality design and
respect the local area.
Policy DM26 (Local Character and Distinctiveness) states that development should respond
appropriately to the height, scale, massing, shape, form and proportion of existing buildings, building
lines and set-backs from the street, skylines and roofscapes. Development should also respect, build
upon or restore the local pattern and grain of development.
Policy DM27 (Layout and Form) aims to ensure development contributes to the successful
arrangement and form of buildings, structures and spaces and contribute to the creation of quality
urban design and healthy, safe and sustainable places.
Policy DM30 (Alterations to Existing Buildings) sets out that new development will be expected to
respect the siting, scale, form, proportions, materials, details and the overall design and character of
the host building, its curtilage and the broader street scene.
Supplementary Planning Document 2: A Guide for Designing House Alterations and Extensions
(SPD2) states that successful extensions should be subservient to the original house in terms of scale
and positioning and should reflect the character of the property and the wider area. SPD2 states that
roof alterations and extensions should be subservient and respectful of the host property. Acceptable
dormers are usually on the rear or side of the property and sit comfortably within the existing roof. The
material, scale, siting and windows should reflect the host building.
The proposed rear infill extension would be respectful of the host property and surrounding area. The
size and scale of the proposal would be acceptable and whilst the proposal would be deeper than
usually allowed it would demonstrate adequate levels of subservience given its scale and the size of
remaining amenity space. The proposal would respect the existing rear building line and would not
have a negative impact on the character and appearance of the property or surrounding area. The
proposal would not be overly dominant, would be at the rear of the property and would not be highly
visible from public vantage points. Therefore, the proposal is considered to be acceptable.
The proposed rear dormer extension would not be entirely compliant with SPD2 as large box dormers
would not usually be acceptable. Generally, large box dormers do not fully respect the existing
property and area and can appear overly dominant. However, the proposal is set down from the ridge
height meaning that part of the original roof is retained and would include an amended valley and
gutter giving the impression it would be set back from the eaves. The proposal would also be inkeeping and be of a similar size and scale to dormer roof extensions at no.114 and no.118 Chessel
Street. Additionally, the proposal would be at the rear of the property and a similar sized proposal
could be completed under Permitted Development. This fall-back position is a material consideration
in the determination of the application. Overall, whilst the proposal would not be fully compliant with
SPD2, it would not visible from the public realm and a similar sized dormer could be erected under
Permitted Development. Therefore, given the above, it would be on balance deemed as acceptable.
The proposed materials would generally match the existing and/or be appropriate alternatives which
respect the character of the building. The proposal, therefore would not negatively impact the
character of the area.

Page 85

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/05576/H : 116 Chessel Street Bristol BS3 3DJ

Item no. 3

In summary, the proposal complies with the Local Development Plan and policies such as BCS21,
DM26, DM27 and DM30 and supplementary guidance namely SPD2 meaning the design, layout and
form is acceptable.
B)
WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CAUSE ANY UNACCEPTABLE HARM TO
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY OF FUTURE OR ADJACENT OCCUPIERS?
Section 12 (Achieving Well-Designed Places), Paragraph 127 of the NPPF outlines that planning
policies and decisions should ensure that development create places with a high standard of amenity
for existing and future users.
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) states that new development should safeguard the amenity of
existing development.
Policy DM27 (Layout and Form) states the layout and form of development should enable existing and
proposed development to achieve appropriate levels of privacy, outlook and daylight.
Policy DM30 (Alterations to Existing Buildings) states that extensions and alterations to buildings will
be expected to safeguard the amenity of the host premises and neighbouring occupiers.
Supplementary Planning Document 2: A Guide for Designing House Alterations and Extensions
(SPD2) states that developments and extensions should be subservient, should protect neighbour
amenity and should not cross a 45° line drawn in the horizontal or vertical plane when taken the midpoint of the nearest adjacent habitable window so as to not cause overlooking, overbearing or
overshadowing on adjacent occupiers. SPD2 also states that for rear extensions the maximum depth
should be 3.5m.
The proposal would have little impact on no. 114 Chessel Street which is located immediately south
east to the site. The rear infill extension would be entirely screened by the rear outrigger and
extension and would not cross the 45 degree horizontal or vertical rules. The rear dormer extension
would result in an additional storey and increased bulk. However, it is considered that the
development would not give rise to an unacceptable sense of overbearing or overshadowing. The rear
dormer would also not impact levels of sunlight/daylight to this neighbour. Therefore, the proposal
would be acceptable in relation to the amenity of this neighbour.
The proposal would have a minor impact on no. 118 Chessel Street. This neighbour is situated to the
north west of the site and is at a lower ground level. The rear infill extension would project along the
boundary by 6.2m which would not be compliant with SPD2. The proposal would also breach the 45
degree horizontal and vertical rules. However, the existing outrigger and extension breaches the
horizontal rule and the breach to the vertical rule would be minor. It is also considered that due to the
modest height of the proposal, it would not be overbearing to this neighbour and the proposed roof
would hip away from the boundary. Additionally, due to the orientation of the host property and
extension, the proposal would not be overshadowing to this neighbour and would not be any more
harmful than the host property and two-storey outrigger. The rear dormer extension would result in an
additional storey and increased bulk. However, it is considered that the development would not give
rise to an unacceptable sense of overbearing or overshadowing. The rear dormer would also not
impact levels of sunlight/daylight at this neighbour. Therefore, it is deemed that on balance the
proposal would not significantly impact neighbour amenity and would have an acceptable relationship
with this neighbour.
The location of windows is also considered to be acceptable as their outlook would face the
applicants’ rear garden, ensuring privacy remains and opportunities for overlooking are reduced.
Views into neighbouring gardens could only be achieved at oblique angles which would not be
materially different to the existing window arrangement. The location of the roof lights are also
acceptable and would not negatively impact neighbour amenity.

Page 86

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/05576/H : 116 Chessel Street Bristol BS3 3DJ

Item no. 3

In light of the above, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in its context and is not considered
to have a significantly harmful impact upon neighbour amenity, in relation to loss of light/over
shadowing, overlooking or overbearing impacts. The application complies with Policy BCS21 and
SPD2 guidance and is therefore acceptable.
CONCLUSION
The proposed development is of an appropriate height, scale and form as to respect the overall
design of the existing dwelling and surrounding areas character. In addition, the development would
not detriment the residential amenity of future or adjacent occupiers.
The proposed development is therefore recommended for approval, subject to conditions.
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result in the creation of a new
dwelling; development of buildings that people do not normally go into, and conversions of buildings in
lawful use, are exempt from CIL.
This application falls into one of these categories and therefore no CIL is payable.
RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to condition(s)

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

List of approved plans
2.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
A-513 Section DD, received 10 January 2020
A-101 Existing & proposed block plan, received 22 November 2019
A-100 Site location plan, received 22 November 2019
A-103 Existing ground floor plan, received 22 November 2019
A-104 Existing first floor plan, received 22 November 2019
A-105 Existing roof plans, received 22 November 2019
A-106 Existing attic plan, received 22 November 2019
A-201 Proposed ground floor plan, received 22 November 2019
A-202 A Proposed first floor plan, received 24 January 2020
A-203 A Proposed roof plans, received 19 December 2019
A-204 A Proposed roof plan, received 19 December 2019
A-401 Existing front elevation, received 22 November 2019
A-402 Existing rear elevation, received 22 November 2019

Page 87

Development Control Committee B – 12 February 2020
Application No. 19/05576/H : 116 Chessel Street Bristol BS3 3DJ
A-411 Proposed front elevation, received 22 November 2019
A-412 B Proposed rear elevation, received 10 January 2020
A-501 Existing section AA, received 22 November 2019
A-510 Proposed section AA, received 22 November 2019
A-511 B Proposed section BB, received 10 January 2020
A-512 B Proposed section CC, received 10 January 2020
Design and access statement, received 24 January 2020
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.
commdelgranted
V1.0211

Page 88

Item no. 3

Supporting Documents
3.

116 Chessel Street
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Existing ground floor plan
Existing attic plan
Proposed ground floor plan
Proposed attic plan
Existing front elevation
Existing rear elevation
Proposed front elevation
Proposed rear elevation
Proposed section – BB
Proposed section - CC

Page 89

LINE OF NEIGHBORS LEAN
TOO/ FACE OF GF BUILDING
Exiting Patio Doors
Glazed Lean Too

A

Existing Garden Wall
Open Infill Area

2833

Page 90

Lounge

Dining Area

3002

2724

Existing UPVC Patio Doors
2819

Study
Kitchen
Hallway

B

Existing GF Floor Plan
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Existing GF Plan

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

14.11.2019

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-103

Rev

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

A

Page 91

Loft Space

Existing Roof
Existing Concrete Tiled Lean
Too Roof

Lean To Loft Space
above Bathroom

Loft Access

B

Exsting Attic Plan
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Existing Attic Plan

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

14.11.2019

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-106

Rev

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

LINE OF NEIGHBORS LEAN
TOO/ FACE OF GF BUILDING
Proposed Structural Opening
to allow for Infill Extension

Glazed Lean Too

Existing Garden Wall

Existing Garden Wall maintained,
with new Brick Insulated Wall to 116
Chessel Street

A
Proposed Glass Fixed Screen

Study

2402.6

2382.6

Lounge

Informal Seating

Dining

Page 92

4410.6

700

854.1

2722.3

Kitchen

Proposed Aluminum PPC
Bi-fold Doors

Hallway

B
Proposed New Kitchen
Configuration

Proposed GF Floor Plan
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

14.11.2019

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-201

Rev

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

Existing Party Wall to have
Acoustic Plasterboard stud
Walling to Meet the UK
Building Regulations.

Glazed Lean Too
LINE OF NEIGHBORS LEAN
TOO/ FACE OF GF BUILDING

Existing Roof Tile to Roof Edge
and between Wall of Dormer
Extension

Existing Garden Wall

A

Make Up

Wardrobe 1

Wardrobe 2

Feature Chair
TV Option

Proposed Glass Lean Too
Roof

Roof Tiles

Velux

Glazed Roof

De Baed

1409

De Baed

Rooflight

2572

3851

Page 93

Existing Roof
En-Suite
1688

Loft Space

Existing Concrete Tiled Lean
Too Roof

Bedroom 3

Rooflight

Existing Concrete Tiled Lean
Too Roof

819

shower

Rooflight

B

Proposed Attic Dormer
Proposed Velux Operable Roof
Window for Light and
Ventilation to new stair Landing

Proposed Velux Rooflight to
Existing Front Facade
Concrete Tiled Roof.

Proposed Attic Plan
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Proposed Roof Plans

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

14.11.2019

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-203

Rev

A

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

A

C

B
116 Chessel Street

Neighbor Existing Attic Dormer

Existing Ridge Tile
Existing Ridge Tile

Existing Concrete Roof Tiles

Page 94

Existing Render Color Coat
Finish

Existing Front Elevation (Road)
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Existing Elevation - Front

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

28.05.2019

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:100 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-401

Rev

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

116 Chessel Street

Neighbor Existing Attic Dormer

Existing Ridge Tile
Existing Ridge Tile

Page 95
Existing Rear Lean Too

External Space

Existing Rear Elevation (North)
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Existing Elevation - Rear

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

14.11.2019

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-402

Rev

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

A

C

B
116 Chessel Street

Neighbor Existing Attic Dormer

Existing Ridge Tile

Proposed Velux Roof Light.

Existing Ridge Tile

Concrete Roof Tile to Match
Existing

Page 96

Existing Render Color Coat
Finish

Proposed Front Elevation
scale 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Proposed Elevation - Front

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

15.11.2015

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-411

Rev

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

A

B

C

116 Proposed Attic Dormer
Proposed Rear Attic Dormer
finished with K Render in
Anthracite Grey

Neighbor Existing Attic Dormer

Existing Ridge Tile

Proposed Glazed Infill
Extension to the front portion
and a solid to the rear portion.

Page 97
Proposed Glazed Low E safety
Glass Fixed Wall Panel

2700 external to eaves

2500 external to eaves

Eaves SOP

2405 internal

Proposed Rear Aluminum
Bi-fold Doors

2500 external to eaves

Eaves SOP

GROUND
F.F.L + 0.095

G.L + 0.000

Proposed Rear Elevation
Scale 1:50@ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

Existing Rear Lean Too

0m

Extension
nse

CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

Helen Kilroy

Proposed Elevation - Rear

Date

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

14.11.2019

111

nse

Checked
Scale

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-412

Rev

B

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

1

2

3

4

5

Proposed Attic Dormer

Proposed Rear Dormer
Extension with Flat Roof, and
lower than the Existing Ridge
Height

Existing Ridge Tile

Existing Roof Tile to Roof Edge
and between Wall of Dormer
Extension

Min 1800 Head
Height

44

5

Proposed Flat Roof with Velux

Page 98

Proposed Infill Glazed Extension
Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2
Proposed Glass Lean Too
Roof Ridge Line
Proposed Line of Top of Wall
where lowest line of glass will
be 2500 + FGL

2500 external to eaves

Eaves SOP (top
of Gutter)
Informal Coffee Area
Diner
Diner
Lounge

Study

Existing Garden Wall

Proposed Glass Fixed Screen

GROUND
F.F.L + 0.095

G.L + 0.000

Proposed Section B-B
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

nse

Helen Kilroy

Proposed Section - BB

Date

14.11.2019 Scale

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

111

nse

Checked

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-511

Rev

B

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

Proposed Rear Attic Dormer
finished with K Render in
Anthracite Grey

Existing Ridge Tile

Bathroom
Proposed Glazed Infill Extension

Kitchen

2405 internal

Proposed new Diner Wall, set
50mm filled cavity from line of
existing boundary wall, made
good a part of the party wall
act.

2500 external to eaves

Page 99

Eaves SOP (top
of Gutter)

Profiled Engineered Gutter to
base of glazed roof

GROUND
F.F.L + 0.095

G.L + 0.000

Existing Rear Lean Too

Extension

All Boundary Wall Construction
will be subject to the
agreement of the Party Wall.

Proposed Section C-C Through
Boundary Wall
Scale: 1:50 @ A3

nse architects
www.nsearchitects.com

A3

Original Sheet
Size

0m
CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

Drawn

nse

Helen Kilroy

Proposed Section - CC

Date

14.11.2019 Scale

Property Address

ISSUE STATUS

Project No.

116 Chessel Street, Bristol, B3 3DJ

Planning Application

111

nse

Checked

5m
nse

.. Approved

1:50 @ A3

Drawing No.

A-512

Rev

B

This drawing, the designs and details shown are the copyright of
nse architects and shall not be copied
or reproduced in any form without their written consent.

PROJECT

Attic and side Infill Extension
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES PLEASE CALL NSE ARCHITECTS

www.nsearchitects.com

.. GENERAL NOTES

1. All dimensions shown are in millimeters, and do not take into
account applied finishes, unless specifically indicated otherwise.
2. Any omissions or discrepancies shall be reported to the Architect/Engineer immediately.
3. Levels are given in meters to three decimal places above survey datum.
4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant section of the specification
and schedules.
5. The contractor shall submit full shop / setting out drawing for approval (based on site
dimensions) prior to commencement of any site works, placing of orders,
manufacture of fittings, fixtures and components

